BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

To:

TELEPHONE:

020 8464 3333

DIRECT LINE:
FAX:

020 8313 4745
020 8290 0608

CONTACT: Rosalind Upperton
Rosalind.Upperton@bromley.gov.uk

DATE: 2 April 2019

Members of the
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 3
Councillor Katy Boughey (Chairman)
Councillor Charles Joel (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kevin Brooks, Robert Evans, William Huntington-Thresher,
Alexa Michael, Keith Onslow, Tony Owen and Kieran Terry
A meeting of the Plans Sub-Committee No. 3 will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on
THURSDAY 11 APRIL 2019 AT 7.00 PM
MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Members of the public can speak at Plans Sub-Committee meetings on planning reports,
contravention reports or tree preservation orders. To do so, you must have
 already written to the Council expressing your view on the particular matter, and
 indicated your wish to speak by contacting the Democratic Services team by no later than
10.00am on the working day before the date of the meeting.
These public contributions will be at the discretion of the Chairman. They will normally be limited to
two speakers per proposal (one for and one against), each with three minutes to put their view
across.

To register to speak please telephone Democratic Services on 020 8313
4745
---------------------------------If you have further enquiries or need further information on the content
of any of the applications being considered at this meeting, please
contact our Planning Division on 020 8313 4956 or e-mail
planning@bromley.gov.uk
---------------------------------Information on the outline decisions taken will usually be available on
our website (see below) within a day of the meeting.
Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

AGENDA
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019
(Pages 1 - 8)

4

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

SECTION 1
(Applications submitted by the London Borough of Bromley)
Report
No.

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

NO REPORTS
SECTION 2
(Applications meriting special consideration)
Report
No.

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

NO REPORTS
SECTION 3
(Applications recommended for permission, approval or consent)
Report
No.

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

4.1

Chislehurst
Conservation Area

9 - 28

(18/05285/FULL1) – Haddon, Beechcroft,
Chislehurst, Kent, BR7 5DB

4.2

Chislehurst

29 - 38

(18/05662/FULL6) - 66 Elmstead Lane,
Chislehurst, BR7 5EL

4.3

Chislehurst

39 - 48

(19/00124/FULL6) - 1 Denbigh Close,
Chislehurst, Kent, BR7 5EB

4.4

Crystal Palace
Conservation Area

49 - 78

(19/00202/FULL1) - Century House, 37
Church Road, Anerley, London, SE19 2TE.

SECTION 4
(Applications recommended for refusal or disapproval of details)
Report
No.

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

NO REPORTS
5
Report
No.

CONTRAVENTIONS AND OTHER ISSUES

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

NO REPORTS
6
Report
No.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS

Ward
NO REPORTS

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 3
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 3
Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 14 February 2019
Present:
Councillor Katy Boughey (Chairman)
Councillor Charles Joel (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kevin Brooks, Robert Evans, Simon Fawthrop,
William Huntington-Thresher, Alexa Michael, Tony Owen and
Kieran Terry
Also Present:
Councillors Marina Ahmad and Angela Page
28

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Keith Onslow; Councillor Simon
Fawthrop attended as substitute.
29

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor William Huntington-Thresher declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 4.11 as
he resided within half a mile of the application site.
Councillor Katy Boughey declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 4.8 as she resided
adjacent to the application site.
30

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2018

The following amendment was made to the first two lines at the top of page 8 relating to
Minute 27.6 – Jason, Yester Road, Chislehurst:‘Ward Member Councillor Terry, visited the site and supported the conditions
recommended by the officers. He considered that on balance, permission was the best
way forward.’
In regard to the retrospective element of this application, Councillor Terry had asked the
applicant to orally confirm his awareness of the conditions and informatives in the report.
RESOLVED that subject to the amendments above, the Minutes of the meeting
held on 13 December 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

49

Page 1

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
31

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

SECTION 2

(Applications meriting special consideration)

31.1
HAYES AND CONEY HALL

(18/01537/FULL1) - 34 West Common Road, Hayes,
Bromley BR2 7BX
Description of application – Demolition of existing
buildings and redevelopment to form 28 sheltered
apartments for the elderly, including communal
facilities, access, car parking and landscaping.
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.
An update from the Planning Officer was reported at
the meeting and circulated to Members. The update
referred to an agreement reached with the applicant
regarding contributions towards affordable housing,
health, infrastructure and carbon offsetting.
Notwithstanding this, officers continued to have
concerns that the development would impact
harmfully on the character of the area and
neighbouring properties for the reasons set out in the
main report.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE REFUSED as recommended, for the following
reason:1 The proposed development by reason of its
prominent siting, height, scale, massing, dominant
design and excessive degree of site coverage in this
prominent location, represents an uncharacteristic
punctuation in the streetscene out of character and
context to the scale and massing of the existing
buildings and general pattern of lesser scale of
development in the vicinity harmful to the visual and
residential amenities of the area and contrary to
Policies 4 and 37 of the Bromley Local Plan (2019)
and Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (2016).

31.2
BROMLEY COMMON AND
KESTON
CONSERVATION AREA

(18/05112/FULL1) - Land rear of 15-21
Commonside, Keston
Description of application – Erection of a detached
two storey five bedroom dwellinghouse, vehicular
access, refuse store, means of enclosure and

50

Page 2

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
associated landscaping on land at the rear of 15-21
Commonside.
Oral representations in objection to and in support of
the application were received at the meeting.
Written comments from Ward Member Councillor
Robert McIlveen in objection to the application were
received and circulated to Members.
It was reported that further objections, similar to those
already contained in the report, had been received.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE REFUSED for the following reasons:1 The proposed development would result in a
cramped overdevelopment of this backland site which
would be detrimental to the character and spatial
standards of the area and wider Conservation Area by
reason of its scale, design and siting, contrary to
Policies 3, 4, 37 and 41 of the Bromley Local Plan.
2. The proposal would be detrimental to the amenities
that the occupiers of neighbouring residential
properties might reasonably expect to be able to enjoy
by reason of its dominance and visual impact and
would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy,
contrary to Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.
31.3
BROMLEY COMMON AND
KESTON

(18/05281/FULL1) - 32 Lower Gravel Road,
Bromley BR2 8LJ
Description of application – Construction of a new
attached two-bedroomed house.
Members having considered the report, RESOLVED
that PERMISSION BE REFUSED as recommended,
for the reasons set out in the report of the Chief
Planner.

31.4
FARNBOROUGH AND
CROFTON

(18/05329/TPO) - 89 Woodcote Drive, Orpington
BR6 8DT
Description of application – T1 Maple – Fell to ground
level and treat stump. SUBJECT to TPO 1101.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that THE FELLING OF ONE
51

Page 3

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
MAPLE TREE TO GROUND LEVEL AND
TREATMENT OF THE STUMP BE REFUSED as
recommended, for the reason and informative set out
in the report of the Chief Planner.
SECTION 3

(Applications recommended for permission, approval
or consent)

31.5
BICKLEY

(18/02747/FULL1) - The Cottage, Fountain Court,
Lawrie Park Road, Sydenham, London SE26 6EE
Description of application – Demolition of existing
garages and The Cottage and the erection of 5 x 3bed dwellings, associated parking and landscaping
with amended visibility splays at the access to Lawrie
Park Road.
Oral representations in objection to and in support of
the application were received. Further written
representations from both speakers were received
and circulated to Members. Oral representations from
Ward Member Councillor Marina Ahmad in objection
to the application were received at the meeting.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE REFUSED for the following reasons:1 The proposed development would result in a
cramped overdevelopment of this backland site which
would be detrimental to the character and spatial
standards of the area and the residential amenities of
existing and future occupiers by reason of the number
and scale of dwellings, their design and siting and the
area of built development and hard surfaces, contrary
to Policies 3, 4 and 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.
2 The proposal would have a detrimental impact on
pedestrian safety, would give rise to potential conflict
between pedestrians and vehicles and impact on
congestion as a result of refuse trucks being required
to wait at the entrance to the site to the detriment of
conditions of safety in the highway, contrary to
Policies 31, 32 and 33 of the Bromley Local Plan.

31.6
BICKLEY

(18/04099/FULL6) - 15 Golf Road, Bickley BR1 2JA
Description of application – Conversion of garage and
erection of two storey side and rear extension and
rear patio/terraces.
52

Page 4

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informative set out in the report of the
Chief Planner.
31.7
BROMLEY TOWN

(18/04979/FULL6) - 33 Hollingworth Road Petts
Wood, Orpington BR5 1AQ
Description of application – Part one/two storey
side/rear extension.
Councillor Terry requested that future planning reports
include the reason(s) for submission to Committee.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PERMISSION BE
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions set out in the report of the Chief Planner.

31.8
CHISLEHURST
CONSERVATION AREA

(18/05175/FULL6) - 11 Heathfield, Chislehurst
BR7 6AF
Description of application – Part one/two storey rear
extensions, two storey front extension, elevational
alterations comprising of changes to windows, doors
and addition of Juliet balconies to first floor rear and
roof alterations to include raised roof ridge to
accommodate loft conversion with addition of roof
windows to all elevations.
The final paragraph on page 127 of the report headed
‘Location and Key Constraints’ was amended to read:‘The application site is a two storey detached dwelling
on the northern side of Heathfield which falls within
Chislehurst Conservation Area. The site is located
within the established residential area with a variety of
architectural styles and scale.’
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PERMISSION BE
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions set out in the report of the Chief Planner
with the addition of an informative to read:53

Page 5

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
‘Please note that the tree located to the front of the
dwelling is protected by the Chislehurst Conservation
Area designation. Any works to the tree or its removal
to enable the construction of the extension will require
consent from the Council.
31.9
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(18/05579/FULL6) - 148 Petts Wood Road, Petts
Wood, Orpington BR5 1LF
Description of application – Loft conversion
incorporating Juliet balcony, rooflights and dormer to
side and rear.
Members having considered the report, RESOLVED
that PERMISSION BE GRANTED as recommended,
subject to the conditions set out in the report of the
Chief Planner.
Councillor Fawthrop’s vote against permission was
noted.

31.10
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(19/00034/PLUD) - 40 Manor Way, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1NW
Description of application – Single storey rear
extension and detached garden building. LAWFUL
DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE (PROPOSED).
Whilst further objections to the application had been
received, they did not raise any relevant legal points.
Legal advice was sought from and subsequently
provided by the Legal representative.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that a CERTIFICATE OF
LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT BE GRANTED as recommended,
for the reason set out in the report of the Chief
Planner.

SECTION 4

(Applications recommended for refusal or disapproval
of details)

31.11
CHELSFIELD AND PRATTS
BOTTOM

(18/04573/FULL1) - The Chelsfield, 1 Windsor
Drive, Orpington BR6 6EY
Description of application – Demolition of existing
building and redevelopment of the site to create a
replacement public house and landlord
54

Page 6

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019
accommodation; A1 convenience store, 10 x
residential apartments; reconfiguration of the car park
and bin/cycle storage.
Oral representations in objection to the application
were received. Oral representations from Ward
Member Councillor Angela Page in objection to the
application were received at the meeting.
It was reported that further objections, similar to those
already outlined in the report had been received.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED TO CONTEST THE
APPEAL as recommended, for the reasons set out in
the report of the Chief Planner with reasons 1 and 5
amended to read:‘1 The proposal, by reason of its prominent siting,
design, excessive residential density, scale and
massing would appear out of keeping and out of
character with the locality, represent an over-dominant
structure in the street scene and an over-intensive
development with an excessive proportionate
residential density, contrary to London Plan Policy 7.4,
draft London Plan Policy D2 and Bromley Local Plan
Polices 4 and 37.
5 In the absence of information to demonstrate that
the proposed replacement public house would be
viable and in view of the existing community function
and services provided by the existing public house, to
residents and communities, it is considered that the
proposal would result in a loss of a highly valued
public house in the area without adequate
replacement contrary to draft London Plan Policy HC7
and Bromley Local Plan Policies 20 and 23.’
The following ground to contest the appeal was also
added:7 The proposed development would result in the loss
of a non-designated heritage asset which would not
be adequately replaced by the replacement public
house to the detriment of the local community contrary
to Policy 40 of the Bromley Local Plan.

55

Page 7

Plans Sub-Committee No. 3
14 February 2019

33

TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS

33.1
FARNBOROUGH AND
CROFTON

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
2647 - Westfield, Farnborough Hill, Orpington
BR6 7EQ
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that Tree Preservation
Order No 2647 relating to one cedar tree BE
CONFIRMED WITHOUT MODIFICATION, as
recommended, in the report of the Chief Planner.

33.2
CHISLEHURST

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
2649 - Mulbarton Court, Kemnal Road, Chislehurst
BR7 6NE
Additional representations received from the
management company for residents of the apartments
in objection to the TPO were received and reported to
Members of the Committee.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that Tree Preservation
Order No 2649 relating to two mature lime trees BE
CONFIRMED WITHOUT MODIFICATION, as
recommended, in the report of the Chief Planner.

The meeting ended at 9.05 pm

Chairman

56

Page 8

Agenda Item 4.1
Section ‘3’ - Applications recommended for PERMISSION, APPROVAL or
CONSENT
Application No :

18/05285/FULL1

Address :

Haddon Beechcroft Chislehurst BR7
5DB

OS Grid Ref:

E: 543249 N: 170518

Applicant :

Mr & Mrs N Kerr

Ward:
Chislehurst

Objections : YES

Description of Development:
Demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of two detached four bedroomed
dwellings with accommodation in the roof space as a (Revisions to ref:
16/03482/FULL1 which was approved on 12.10.2016 to provide additional
accommodation within the loft space).
Key designations:
Conservation Area: Chislehurst
Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Smoke Control SCA 16
Proposal
This application follows a recent permission which was granted for the demolition
of the existing dwelling and construction of two detached four bedroomed dwellings
under Ref: 16/03482/FULL1 and a refusal under Ref: 17/02846/FULL1 which had
expanded on the 2016 application to include accommodation in the roof space in
the form of two additional rooms and bathroom per unit together with rear dormer
and flank rooflights.
This new application now seeks to address the previous reason for refusal by
increasing the floor to ceiling height of the flank rooflights whilst still retaining the
rear dormer and conversion of the roof space to habitable accommodation in the
form of two additional rooms and bathroom per unit together.
Plot one is a triangular shaped plot with a maximum width of ~11m and ~46.5m in
length. The new dwelling would have a maximum width of 10.3m and 9.5m in
height (eaves 5.7m). The dwelling is proposed to be constructed with a hipped
roof profile with a two storey front projecting gable and one dormer in the rear
roofslope and two rooflights, one in the northern roof slope looking towards
Stonywood and one in the southern roofslope towards Plot two. The new dwelling
will be located ~11m back from the highway, and 3.377m from the northern
boundary with Stonywood and 1.4m at its closest point to the southern boundary
with No. 1.4m and Plot 2.

Page 9

Plot two would have a maximum width of ~28m and length of ~51.6m on a
triangular shaped plot. The new dwelling would be located 10.5m increasing to
15m back from the highway. The dwelling would be located 4.26m at its closest
point with the southern boundary to The Thicket and ~1.2m from the northern
boundary at its closest point with Plot one. The new dwelling would have a
maximum width of 16.5m and depth of 13.4m. The dwelling is proposed to be
constructed with a hipped roof profile with two front projecting gables. The new
dwelling will be 8.7m in height (eaves 5.7m). The new dwelling will have one rear
dormer together with three rooflights, one on the northern roof slope towards Plot
one and two on the southern roofslope looking towards The Thicket.
An additional vehicular entrance is proposed to the site to the south of the plot
facilitated by the removal of some planting within the front amenity space.
Location
This property occupies a triangular plot within Chislehurst Conservation Area, and
is located on the western side of Beechcroft at the point where the road bends
westwards. The site has a wide frontage and tapers to a point at the rear giving a
triangular-shaped rear garden. The site is bounded to the north and south-west by
two storey detached dwellings known as Stonywood and The Thicket respectively.
The site is occupied by a wide fronted single storey dwelling which extends the
width of the site, approximately 35.3m.
Comments from Local Residents and Groups
Nearby owners/occupiers were notified of the application and representations were
received which can be summarised as follows:
Objections:










Proposal would result in two six bed houses and the description on the
drawings is misleading;
Whilst permission has been granted for two houses, these were only 4 bed
units;
The rooflights in the flank (whilst an improvement on the dormers) would still
be highly visible in the road;
Concerns over loss of privacy and overlooking;
There is a covenant on the land to prevent sub-division of plots;
The council should (a) retract the previous permission as it is an
overdevelopment of the site and does not adhere to the original covenants
and would lead to unsatisfactory accommodation without excessively
exceeding the Building Lines and cutting down a number of trees or (b)
amend previous permission prohibit additional accommodation in the loft
space or (c) remove the dormers and replace them with flush rooflights;
The proposed dwellings by reason of their bulk and design would be harmful
the street scene and character and appearance of the Chislehurst
Conservation Area;
The proposal is identical to previous refusal and should be refused again;

Page 10



Three storeys are out of character with the area.

Local Groups:
The Chislehurst Society wishes to make the following OBJECTION to the above
application:
When compared with previous schemes that have been refused planning
permission, there does not appear to be any material changes to the bulk and
design of the proposed roofs. They continue to be inimical to the street scene and
would adversely impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation
area.
The applicant refers to the roof lights in the side roof slopes as being 'conservation
roof lights' (Planning and Design Statement, para 3.15). We are not familiar with
this description and would have expected more detailed explanation of its
application in the roof design submitted. We note that the applicant emphasises
that the cill level of the roof lights will be 1.1m above floor level (Planning and
Design Statement, para 3.21).
This would still enable occupants of the proposed roof space in each dwelling to
look out of these roof lights towards the windows and garden areas of the
neighbouring dwellings. Such overlooking would harm the amenities of neighbours
by loss of privacy.
As such, the proposal does not comply with BLP policies P4, P37 and P41.
If the Planning Officer concludes that planning permission should be granted, we
recommend it should be conditional:


The rooflights be glazed with opaque glass, and non-opening; unless the
parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7m above the
floor of the room in which the window is installed.

Please note the above is a summary of objections received and full text is available
on the Council's website.
Comments from Consultees
Environmental Health - Pollution - No objection raised subject to conditions.
Highways - The application is a revision to the last 2016 application and appears to
be basically the same as the previous 2017 proposal. The proposed access and
parking arrangements have not changed and as such no objections are raised
subject to conditions.
Drainage - No objections subject to conditions.
Conservation Officer - No objections subject to conditions requiring the
development to be completed fully in accordance with the submitted plans.

Page 11

Tree Officer - The trees proposed for removal are relatively low value, so there is
no objection to this.
The only area for concern in terms of Arb impact is the relaying of driveway within
the RPA of the TPO Cedar T2. The current Tree Protection Plan indicates the use
of a non-invasive solution. Further details of this are required to be sufficiently
assured of the protection of this tree should be secured by condition.
Policy Context
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets out
that in considering and determining applications for planning permission the local
planning authority must have regard to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
any other material considerations.

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it clear
that any determination under the planning acts must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The National Planning Policy Framework was published on 24 July 2018 and
updated on 19 February 2019.
The development plan for Bromley comprises the Bromley Local Plan (Jan 2019)
and the London Plan (March 2016). The NPPF does not change the legal status of
the development plan.
The application falls to be determined in accordance with the following policies:
London Plan (2016):
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.8
3.9
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.7
5.9
5.10
5.11
5.12
5.13
5.14
5.15

Increasing Housing Supply
Optimising Housing Potential
Quality and Design of Housing Developments
Housing Choice
Mixed and Balanced Communities
Climate change mitigation
Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
Sustainable Design and Construction
Renewable Energy
Overheating and cooling
Urban Greening
Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
Flood Risk Management
Sustainable Drainage
Water quality and wastewater Infrastructure
Water use and supplies

Page 12

5.16 Waste self-sufficiency
5.17 Waste capacity
5.18 Construction, excavation and demolition waste
6.5
Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
6.9
Cycling
6.12 Road Network Capacity
6.13 Parking
7.1
Lifetime Neighbourhoods
7.2
An Inclusive Environment
7.3
Designing Out Crime
7.4
Local Character
7.5
Public Realm
7.6
Architecture
7.8
Heritage Assets and Archaeology
7.14 Improving Air Quality
7.15 Reducing and Managing Noise, Improving and Enhancing the Acoustic
Environment and Promoting Appropriate Soundscapes.
7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
8.3
Community Infrastructure Levy
Housing: Supplementary Planning Guidance. (March 2016)
Technical housing standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
Bromley Local Plan (2019):
Policy 1 Housing Supply
Policy 4 Housing Design
Policy 8 Side Space
Policy 37 General Design of Development
Policy 30 Parking
Policy 32 Road Safety
Policy 41 Conservation Area
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1: General Design Principles
Supplementary Planning Guidance 2: Residential Design Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Chislehurst Conservation Area
Planning History
There is a considerable planning history with regards to this site, of which the most
pertinent and recent applications include:
02/03204/OUT - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 2 detached two
storey five bedroom houses with integral double garages (OUTLINE) - Application
refused for the following reason:
1. The proposed dwellings represent a cramped overdevelopment of the site by
reason of inadequate separation, which would be detrimental to the character of
the Chislehurst Conservation Area

Page 13

03/00045/OUT - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 2 detached two
storey five bedroom houses with integral garages (OUTLINE) - Application refused
Reason for refusal:
1. The proposed dwellings represent a cramped overdevelopment of the site by
reason of inadequate separation, which would be detrimental to the character of
the Chislehurst Conservation Area.
Dismissed on appeal - Inspector concluded ' The plan form has been contrived to
fit the proposed size of the building onto the site. Given the shape and size of the
footprint, I am not persuaded that a satisfactory form of development would result'.
07/03852/FULL1 - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a detached two
storey five bedroom dwelling with basement accommodation - Permitted
10/02412/FULL6 - Front boundary wall and gates - Permitted
11/00405/EXTEND - Extension of time limit for implementation of permission
reference 07/03852 granted for demolition of existing building and erection of a
detached two storey five bedroom dwelling with basement accommodation permitted
15/02391/FULL1 - Demolition of existing house and erection of detached
replacement house. (RESUBMISSION OF APPROVED SCHEME REF 07/03852
AND EXTENSION OF TIME APPLICATION 11/00405) - Permitted
16/00832/FULL1 - Proposed demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of two,
four bedroom detached dwellings. Refused for the following reasons:
1. The relationship between the two proposed dwellings appears awkward and
cramped allowing for an intrinsic lowering in the overriding spatial standards of the
locality at odds with the prevailing urban grain of the surrounding area and harmful
to the wider Conservation Area contrary to policy BE1 and BE11 of the Unitary
Development Plan.
2. The removal of approximately 10m of mature vegetation along the front
boundary is considered detrimental to the verdant character of the wider locality
and harmful to the setting of the conservation area contrary to policy BE1 and
BE11 of the Unitary Development Plan.
16/03482/FULL1 planning permission was granted on 12.10.2016 for the proposed
demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of two detached four bedroom
dwellings subject to conditions.
17/00437/FULL1 planning permission was refused for the demolition of existing
dwelling and the construction of two detached four bedroomed dwellings with
accommodation in the roof space as a (Revisions to ref: 16/03482/FULL1 which
was approved on 12.10.2016 to provide additional accommodation within the loft

Page 14

space in the form of a games room, study and bathroom per unit) on the
18.04.2017 for the following reasons:
1.
The proposed dwellings by reason of the proposed flank dormer extensions
would result in an obtrusive "top-heavy" feature incongruous and harmful both to
the appearance of the Chislehurst Conservation Area and street scene generally
contrary to Policies7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (2015), BE1 and BE11 of the
Unitary Development Plan (2006) and Draft Policies 37 and 47 of the Draft Local
Plan (2016).
2.
The proposed development in the form of the flank dormers would give rise
to an unacceptable degree of overlooking and loss of privacy and amenity to the
occupiers of Stonywood and The Thicket, Beechcroft thus contrary to Policies 7.6
of the London Plan (2015), Policy BE1 of the Unitary Development Plan (2006) and
Draft Policy 37 of the Draft Local Plan (2016).
17/02846/FULL1 planning permission was refused for the demolition of existing
dwelling and the construction of two detached four bedroomed dwellings with
accommodation in the roof space as a (Revisions to ref: 16/03482/FULL1 which
was approved on 12.10.2016 to provide additional accommodation within the loft
space in the form of a games room, study and bathroom per unit) on the
04.12.2017 for the following reasons:
1.
The proposed replacement dwellings by reason of their bulk and design
would be harmful to the street scene and the character and appearance of
Chislehurst Conservation Area, contrary to policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan
(2015), BE1 and BE11 of the Unitary Development Plan (2006) and Draft Policies
37 and 41 of the Draft Local Plan (2016).
2.
The proposed development would give rise to an unacceptable degree of
overlooking and loss of privacy and amenity to the occupiers of Stonywood and
The Thicket, Beechcroft thus contrary to Policies 7.6 of the London Plan (2015),
Policy BE1 of the Unitary Development Plan (2006) and Draft Policy 37 of the Draft
Local Plan (2016).
Considerations
It is considered the planning issues and considerations relate to:











Resubmission;
Principle of development and density;
Design and scale;
Neighbouring amenity;
Standard of accommodation;
Car parking and access;
Cycle parking;
Refuse;
Trees;
Sustainability and energy; and

Page 15



Community Infrastructure Levy

Resubmission:
To address the previous reasons for refusal the applicant has increased the floor to
ceiling height of the rooflights from 0.6m to 1.1m to avoid overlooking as shown on
Drawing No. BC-878-PD-L-SECTION). The rooflights are shown to be flush with
the roofslope.
Principle of development and density:
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out in paragraph 14 a
presumption in favour of sustainable development. In terms of decision-making, the
document states that where a development accords with a local plan, applications
should be approved without delay. Where a plan is absent, silent or relevant
policies are out of date, permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts
of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits or specific
policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted.
The document also encourages the effective use of land by reusing land that has
been previously developed (brownfield land) and excludes gardens from the
definition of previously developed land.
National, regional and local plan policies promote redevelopment of brownfield
sites and optimising site potentials. There is however no presumption in favour of
development sites created from rear gardens of residential houses. In this respect,
policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that housing developments should be of the
highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context.
The NPPF requires that the design of new housing significantly enhances its
immediate setting and should be sensitive to the defining characteristics of the
local area and that permission should be refused where a development fails to
improve the character and quality of an area. Policy 4 of the BLP clearly outlines
the Council's policies for new housing.
Supplementary Planning Guidance No. 2 (Residential Design Guidance) states
"local context is of particular importance when adding new buildings to established
areas. Building lines, spaces between buildings, means of enclosure and the use
and location of garden or amenity space should all respect the character of the
locality".
Policy 4 states that all new housing developments will need to achieve a high
standard of design and layout whilst enhancing the quality of local places. Housing
schemes will also need to respect local character, spatial standards, physical
context and density. Policy 3 states that new residential will only be considered
acceptable on backland or garden land if there is:
(a) no unacceptable impact upon the character, appearance or context of an area
in relation to the scale, design and density.

Page 16

(b) there is no unacceptable loss of landscaping, natural habitats, or play or
amenity space.
(c) there is no unacceptable impact on residential amenity.
(d) a high standard of separation and landscaping
These policies are supported in London Plan Policies 3.4 and 3.5.
The site is located in a residential location where the Council will consider infill
development provided that it is designed to complement the character of
surrounding area, the design and layout make suitable residential accommodation,
and it provides for garden and amenity space. Any adverse impact on neighbouring
amenity, conservation and historic issues, biodiversity or open space will need to
be addressed. Therefore the provision of an additional dwelling unit on the land is
acceptable in principle subject to an assessment of the impact of the proposal on
the appearance/character of the surrounding area, the residential amenity of
adjoining and future residential occupiers of the scheme, car parking and traffic
implications, sustainable design and energy, community safety and refuse
arrangements.
It is considered that the principle of the sub-division of the site has been agreed in
principle by the Inspector. The Inspector stated there was no harm to the character
and appearance of the area resulting from the replacement of the single dwelling
with two however this would be subject to an assessment of the factors as listed
above. The issue is therefore not the sub-division itself but, instead, the ability of
the plot to satisfactorily accommodate the proposed dwellings and the design of
the dwellings inclusive of the impact on neighbouring residential amenity and the
wider Chislehurst Conservation Area.
Objections have been raised from neighbouring residents with regards to a
covenant covering the site precluding the subdivision of house plots as with the
previous application ref: 16/03482/FULL2 this is a private legal matter, and does
not form part of the assessment of this application.
The provision of two units on this site was previously considered acceptable in
principle under refs: 16/03482/FULL1. The view was taken that the proposed
replacement dwellings would be in character with other surrounding two storey
dwellings. The proposed dwellings would cover a similar sized footprint as the
existing bungalow. The height of the proposed dwellings would be slightly taller
than the neighbouring properties with the dwelling at plot one sited 900mm above
Stonywood and the property at site two sited 1.3m above The Thicket however this
would be commensurate with the previously permitted dwellings under ref:
16/03482FULL1.
Within the Chislehurst Conservation Area SPG it states that residential
development in Chislehurst is characterised by spacious suburban development.
Whilst it is noted that the two properties proposed within this application are of a
size and scale commensurate with the previously proposed single dwelling, the sub
division of the plot leads to an intensification of the site to a capacity that proposes
to host two family sized properties and therefore the application should take into
account the relevant spatial standards and level of amenity that accompanies this.

Page 17

The definitive urban grain of the surrounding street scene is of wide, substantial
properties sited within generous plots with liberal side space provisions. The siting
of the two dwellings has been re-configured from the previously refused application
and is in the same location as the previously approved scheme under ref:
16/03482/FULL2 with the dwelling at plot one substantially reduced in width and
the dwelling proposed at plot 2 re-sited closer to the boundary with The Thicket
allowing for a more generous side space provision between the two dwellings. The
spacing between the two properties has been increased from 1.6m to the common
side boundary in the previously refused application to 2.6m for plot 2 and 3.4m at
the closest point for plot 1. The dwellings retain a space between the respective
flank elevations of between 6-9.6m which allows for views to be retained through to
the rear of the site and is commensurate with surrounding properties. Whilst the
properties are still angled away from each other which reduces the perceived
spacing between the dwellings when viewed from the highway, given the increased
spatial standards, the siting of the dwellings are now considered acceptable and it
can be considered that the scheme has overcome the previous refusal ground in
this regard and conforms with the prevailing spacious layout of the Chislehurst
Conservation Area in compliance with Policy 41 of the BLP.
As such it is considered that the principle of development can be accepted as the
development is in compliance with Policies 3.4 and 3.5 of the London Plan and
Policies 1, 3 and 4 of the BLP.
The density of the proposal would be 125hr/ha. Table 3.2 of the London Plan sets
out the appropriate density range for a site with a PTAL of 0 in a suburban area as
150-200 hr/ha.
Whilst, the density of the proposal is below the guideline density criteria the
amount of development on site is considered suitable at this location, given the
location of the site within the Chislehurst Conservation Area and the existing
density of the neighbouring properties.
Design and Scale:
London Plan Policy 7.4 requires developments to have regard to the form, function,
and structure of an area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of
surrounding buildings. Policy 7.6 also relates to architecture and how buildings
should be of the highest architectural quality, be of a proportion, composition, scale
and orientation that enhances, activates and appropriately defines the public realm
and comprise details and materials that complement, not necessarily replicate, the
local architectural character.
Policy 37 requires a high standard of design in new development and the scale and
form of new residential development to be in keeping with the surrounding area,
and the privacy and amenities of adjoining occupiers to be adequately
safeguarded.
Policy 8 states that when considering applications for new residential development,
including extensions, the Council will normally require the following:

Page 18

(i) for a proposal of two or more storeys in height, a minimum 1 metre space from
the side boundary of the site should be retained for the full height and length of the
flank wall of the building; or
(ii) where higher standards of separation already exist within residential areas,
proposals will be expected to provide a more generous side space. This will be the
case on some corner properties.
The Council considers that the retention of space around residential buildings is
essential to ensure adequate separation and to safeguard the privacy and amenity
of adjoining residents. It is important to prevent a cramped appearance and
unrelated terracing from occurring. It is also necessary to protect the high spatial
standards and level of visual amenity which characterise many of the Borough's
residential areas. Proposals for the replacement of existing buildings will be
considered on their merits.
The proposed alterations to the roof now include flank rooflights and rear dormers;
these are considered to have addressed the previous concerns by increasing the
cill height of the rooflights to reduce overlooking. The rooflights proposed are
conservation area style which is flush with the roofslope and the dormer to the rear
elevation is sited centrally within the roof form and its modest size which is
considered to sit comfortably. Overall it is considered that the alterations now
proposed would not impact detrimentally on the character and appearance of the
Chislehurst Conservation Area or the street scene generally.
Standard of Residential Accommodation:
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016) Quality and Design of Housing Developments
states the minimum internal floorspace required for residential units on the basis of
the level of occupancy that could be reasonably expected within each unit.
Policy 37 of the BLP states that the development should respect the amenity of
occupiers of future occupants.
Table 3.3 of the London Plan requires a Gross Internal Area of 129m² for a 6
bedroom 8 person 3 storey dwelling houses, paragraph 3.36 further states that for
dwellings with more than eight persons/bed spaces developers should allow
approximately 10sqm per extra bedspace/person. On this basis the floorspace
provision is considered acceptable.
The shape, size and layout of the rooms in the proposed building are considered
satisfactory however it is noted that due to the constraints of the site the layout of
the rooms within the plot 2 dwelling are quite contrived. Nevertheless, all rooms
would have a satisfactory level of natural light provision and given the size and
scale of the dwellings, the layout is considered acceptable.
Standard of Amenity Space:

Page 19

Policy 4 states that adequate private or communal amenity space should be
provided with regards to new residential accommodation.
It is clear from the site plan that the amenity space for the proposed dwellings is to
the rear of the site. The amenity space measures 36m in length for plot 2 and 31m
for plot 1 however could be considered quite contrived in shape. It is considered
that the space provided is not comparative with similarly sized properties in the
vicinity however due to the considerable length and average width of 10m, on
balance this could be considered acceptable.
Impact on Adjoining Properties:
Policy 37 of the BLP states that new development will only be permitted where it
can be demonstrated that the proposal does not cause an unacceptable loss of
amenity to adjacent occupiers by reducing the amount of daylight, sunlight or
privacy they enjoy or result in an un-neighbourly sense of enclosure. This is
supported by Policy 7.6 of the London Plan.
Objections have been received with regards to the impact on neighbouring
properties arising from the development. Due to the separation distances provided
to the boundaries with neighbouring properties, it is not considered that the
development would cause any detrimental impact upon residential amenity over
and above the single dwellinghouse as previously permitted. Furthermore, the
dwellings encroach minimally past the rear elevations of Stonywood and The
Thicket, mitigating and impact with regards to overbearing or overshadowing.
Concern is raised over loss of privacy and overlooking from the flank windows,
under ref: 16/03482/FULL1 windows within the first floor side elevations were to be
either secondary windows or serve non-habitable rooms at first floor and as such
should be conditioned to be obscurely glazed and non-opening. This new proposal
also includes flank rooflights within the flank roof slope, there is therefore concern
that the proposal would result in loss of privacy to the neighbouring properties. A
cross section showing the finished floor level in respect to the flank rooflights has
been provided, this shows the bottom of the windows would be approximately 1.1m
from finished floor level and 2.25 to the top (this is an increase over the previous
application which was 0.6m from finished floor level and 1.8m to the top), as such it
is recommended that a condition be attached to any permission requiring the roof
lights to be bottom hinged with restricted openings (to allow ventilation only) and
obscure glazed to ensure there is no loss of privacy.
With regards to the rear dormers, there are windows proposed at ground and first
floor levels, it is considered that the introduction of further windows in this
elevation, albeit at second floor level would not give rise to any further loss of
privacy or overlooking beyond the extant permission.
Therefore given all of the above it is considered that on balance the proposed
development is acceptable and complies with policy on neighbouring amenity.
Car parking:

Page 20

Highways have raised no objections subject to conditions due to sufficient off street
parking provision within the scheme. Additional cross overs will be required to
apply for a highways licence for these works.
Cycle parking:
Cycle parking is generally required to be 1:1 for residential development. The
applicant has not provided details of a location for lockable cycle storage for the
units. Further details can be conditioned if approval were to be forthcoming.
Refuse:
All new developments shall have adequate facilities for refuse and recycling. The
applicant has not provided details of refuse storage for the units however details
with regarding this could be conditioned if permission was to be forthcoming.
Trees:
The surrounding street scene is verdant in character with the host site contributing
to this appearance with mature high level planting along the front boundary. A
number of trees are proposed to be removed to facilitate the development including
four within the front boundary and 8 within the rear amenity space. The siting of the
units are the same as the recently approved scheme under ref: 16/03482/FULL1
and the Tree Officer comments remain unchanged. It is noted that no significant
trees are to be felled as part of the scheme however does consider the loss of the
two Maple trees to be regrettable. The Officer did state however that the impact
from this could be mitigated by a landscaping condition requiring further planting.
The trees to be lost are located within the site and through correspondence with
the Applicant it is noted that the vegetation along the front boundary is to remain in
situ not including the opening for the new access way which measures 3m in width.
The Tree Officer also stated within the previous comments that a replacement tree
can be planted between the two access ways to mitigate the felling of trees within
this location. Additionally, a comprehensive landscaping scheme can be
conditioned to be submitted which will include all measures to re-instate a verdant
and mature boundary treatment along the prominent corner setting, inclusive of
species type, height and size. On balance, given the retention of one further tree
within the front amenity space, the replacement tree planting and through the
submission of a comprehensive landscaping plan, it is considered that the works to
the trees within the site are considered acceptable and will not impact detrimentally
upon the character of the wider conservation area in compliance with Policies 41
and 73 of the BLP.
Community Infrastructure Levy:
The Mayor of London's CIL is a material consideration. CIL is payable on this
application and the applicant will be required to completed the relevant form.
Conclusion

Page 21

The principle of the demolition of the existing dwelling and construction of two
detached houses on the site has been established, Members are therefore asked
to consider if the revised design over the 16/03482/FULL1 application which now
propose accommodation in the roofspace and includes flank rooflights and rear
dormers has fully addressed the previous reasons for refusal and if the new
development would sit comfortably within the street scene and not impact
detrimentally on the character of the Chislehurst Conservation Area or amenities of
neighbouring occupiers. It is therefore recommended that planning permission is
granted subject to the imposition of suitable conditions contained within this report.
Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above,
excluding exempt information.
as amended by documents received on 08.03.2019
RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION
Subject to the following conditions:
1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of 3 years, beginning with the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
complete accordance with the plans approved under this planning permission
unless previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the
interests of visual and residential amenity.

3

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including
demolition and all preparatory work), an updated Tree Protection Plan and
Arboricultural Method Statement shall be submitted for approval to the Local
Planning Authority. Such details shall include either the retention of the existing
subbase where the driveway crosses the RPA of T2 or the method and materials
for a no-dig alternative and, whichever method is detailed, a permeable hard
surface. Once approved and prior to the commencement of the development
hereby approved (including demolition and all preparatory work) tree protection
measures shall be installed in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan.
Once installed, photographic evidence of the fencing and ground protection shall
be submitted to the LPA for approval. Such measures shall not be moved or
removed, but shall be retained in situ until completion of the development and all
materials and machinery have been removed from the site, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the LPA. The development shall thereafter be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and recommendations within the approved
Arboricultural Method Statement or any variation as may subsequently be agreed
in writing by the LPA.
Reason: Required prior to the commencement of development in order that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained will not be
damaged during development works and to ensure that, as far as is possible, the
work is carried out in accordance with the approved details pursuant to section
197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in accordance with Polices 37, 73
and 74 of the Bromley Local Plan.

Page 22

4

(a) Prior to commencement of above ground works, details (including samples) of
the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building which shall
include roof cladding, wall facing materials and cladding, window glass, door and
window frames, decorative features, rainwater goods and paving where
appropriate shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
(b) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the
interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of the area

5

Prior to commencement of development (excluding demolition) details of the
proposed slab levels of the building(s) and the existing site levels shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority . The
development shall be completed strictly in accordance with the approved levels.
Reason: Required prior to commencement in order to ensure that a satisfactory
form of development can be undertaken on the site in the interest of visual
amenity and to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.

6

(a) Details of the proposed boundary treatments including any gates, walls or
fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to commencement of the above ground works.
(b) The approved boundary treatments shall be implemented prior to occupation
of the buildings and retained in perpetuity.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the
interest of visual amenity and the amenities of adjacent properties.

7

(a) Details of arrangements for storage of refuse and recyclable materials
(including means of enclosure for the area concerned where necessary) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
construction of any above ground works
(b) The arrangements as approved under part (a) shall be completed before any
part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied, and permanently
retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to provide adequate refuse storage facilities in a location which
is acceptable from the residential and visual amenity aspects and to comply with
Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.

8

(a) Details of arrangements for bicycle parking (including covered storage
facilities where appropriate) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to construction of any above ground works
(b) The arrangements as approved under part (a) shall be completed before any
part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied, and permanently
retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to provide adequate bicycle parking facilities at the site in the
interest of reducing reliance on private car transport and to comply with Policy 6.9
of the London Plan.

9

i) Prior to commencement of above ground works details of treatment of all parts
on the site not covered by buildings shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be landscaped strictly in
accordance with the approved details in the first planting season after completion

Page 23

or first occupation of the development, whichever is the sooner. Details shall
include:
1. A scaled plan showing all existing vegetation to be retained and trees and
plants to be planted which shall include use of a minimum of 30% native plant
species of home grown stock (where possible) and no invasive species
2. Proposed hardstanding and boundary treatment
3. A schedule detailing sizes and numbers of all proposed trees/plants
4. Sufficient specification to endure successful establishment and survival of new
planting.
(ii) There shall be no excavation or raising or lowering of levels within the
prescribed root protection area of retained trees unless agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
(iii) Any new tree(s) that die(s), are/is removed or become(s) severely damaged or
diseased shall be replaced and any new planting (other than trees) which dies, is
removed, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years of planting
shall be replaced. Unless further specific permission has been given by the Local
Planning Authority, replacement planting shall be in accordance with the
approved details
Reason: In order to secure a visually satisfactory setting for the development and
to protect neighbouring amenity and to comply with Policies 37, 73 and 74 of the
Bromley Local Plan.
10

(a) Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved (excluding any
ground clearance or demolition) a scheme for the provision of surface water
drainage shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.
(b) Before the details required to satisfy Part (a) are submitted an assessment
shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface water by means of a
sustainable drainage system (SuDS) to ground, watercourse or sewer in
accordance with drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy 5.13
and the advice contained within the National SuDS Standards.
(c) Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be provided, the submitted details
shall:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method
employed to delay (attenuate) and control the rate of surface water discharged
from the site as close to greenfield runoff rates (8l/s/ha) as reasonably practicable
and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or
surface water
(d) The drainage scheme approved under Parts a, b and c shall be implemented in
full prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of any new operational
development in order to ensure that a satisfactory means of surface water
drainage, to reduce the risk of flooding can be achieved before development
intensifies on site and to comply with the Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and
Policies 115, 116 and 117 of the Bromley Local Plan.

11

(a) Surface water from private land shall not discharge on to the highway.

Page 24

(b) Prior to the commencement of above ground works details of the drainage
system for surface water drainage to prevent the discharge of surface water from
private land on to the highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
(c) Before any part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied, the
drainage system shall be completed in accordance with the details approved
under Part (b) and shall be retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory implementation of the surface water drainage
proposals can be secured before additional pressure is placed on existing
arrangements and to accord with to London Plan Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage
and Policies 115, 116 and 117 of the Bromley Local Plan.
12

While the development hereby permitted is being carried out a suitable
hardstanding shall be provided with wash-down facilities for cleaning the wheels
of vehicles and any accidental accumulation of mud of the highway caused by
such vehicles shall be removed without delay and in no circumstances be left
behind at the end of the working day.
Reason: In the interest of pedestrian and vehicular safety and in order to comply
with Policy 32 Bromley Local Plan.

13

Before commencement of the use of the land or building hereby permitted parking
spaces and/or garages and turning space shall be completed in accordance with
the details as set out in this planning permission and thereafter shall be kept
available for such use and no permitted development whether permitted by the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (England)
2015 (or any Order amending, revoking and re-enacting this Order) or not shall be
carried out on the land or garages indicated or in such a position as to preclude
vehicular access to the said land or garages.
Reason: In order to avoid development without adequate parking or garage
provision, which is likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and
would be detrimental to amenities and prejudicial to road safety and to comply
with Policy 30 of the Bromley Local Plan.

14

Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied the proposed
window(s) in the north and south flank first floor elevations of the dwellings
hereby permitted shall be obscure glazed to a minimum of Pilkington privacy
Level 3 and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be
opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window
is installed and the window (s) shall subsequently be permanently retained in
accordance as such.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of nearby residential properties and to
accord with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.

15

Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied the proposed rooflight
window(s) in the north and south flank elevations of the dwellings hereby
permitted shall be obscure glazed to a minimum of Pilkington privacy Level 4 and
shall be non-opening unless bottom pivot/hinged windows with restricted opening
to allow ventilation only. The window (s) shall subsequently be permanently
retained in accordance as such.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of nearby residential properties and to
accord with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.

Page 25

16

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order amending, revoking and reenacting this Order) no buildings, structures, extensions, alterations, walls or
fences of any kind shall be erected or made within the curtilage(s) of the
dwelling(s) hereby permitted without the prior approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of protecting the character of the area and residential
amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy 37 of the Bromley
Local Plan.

You are further informed that :
1

You should contact extension 4621 (020 8313 4621 direct line) at the
Environmental Services Department at the Civic Centre with regard to the laying
out of the crossover(s) and/or reinstatement of the existing crossover(s) as
footway. A fee is payable for the estimate for the work which is refundable when
the crossover (or other work) is carried out. A form to apply for an estimate for
the work can be obtained by telephoning the Highways Customer Services Desk
on the above number or apply via the Council's website
https://www.bromley.gov.uk/info/200083/roads_highways_and_pavements/279/acc
ess_to_your_drive_crossovers_dropped_kerbs

2

You are advised that this application may be liable for the payment of the Mayoral
Community Infrastructure Levy under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations (2010) and the Planning Act 2008. The London Borough of Bromley is
the Collecting Authority for the Mayor and this Levy is payable on the
commencement of development (defined in Part 2, para 7 of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010). It is the responsibility of the owner and /or
person(s) who have a material interest in the relevant land to pay the Levy (defined
under Part 2, para 4(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010). If
you fail to follow the payment procedure, the collecting authority may impose
surcharges on this liability, take enforcement action, serve a stop notice to
prohibit further development on the site and/or take action to recover the debt.
Further information about Community Infrastructure Levy can be found on
attached information note and the Bromley website www.bromley.gov.uk/CIL

3

Conditions imposed on this planning permission require compliance with Part M4
of the Building Regulations. The developer is required to notify Building Control
or their Approved Inspector of the requirements of these conditions prior to the
commencement of development."

4

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m
head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves
Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum
pressure in the design of the proposed development.

5

Before works commence, the Applicant is advised to contact the Pollution Team of
Environmental Health & Trading Standards regarding compliance with the Control
of Pollution Act 1974 and/or the Environmental Protection Act 1990. The Applicant
should also ensure compliance with the Control of Pollution and Noise from
Demolition and Construction Sites Code of Practice 2008 which is available on the
Bromley web site.
If during the works on site any suspected contamination is encountered,
Environmental Health should be contacted immediately. The contamination shall
be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme submitted to the Local
Authority for approval in writing.

Page 26

Application:18/05285/FULL1

Address: Haddon Beechcroft Chislehurst BR7 5DB

b

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of two detached
four bedroomed dwellings with accommodation in the roof space as a
(Revisions to ref: 16/03482/FULL1 which was approved on 12.10.2016 to
provide additional accommodation within the loft space).
15

Acacia

11

Wadebridge

11 a

15

15

c

Highridge

89

Coach House

Littlecroft

One Oak

Grayholme

2

Chilham

Moss End

Wyngate

Mallards

Dennington

85.7m

81

85.0m
The

86.6m

Croft End

d
oo
ew
Pin
9

RO

AD

Oakwood

Tapiola

Danholm

Deanwood

ROFT

Stonywood

Lodge

16
17
18

ER

C
BEECH

ST
YE

7
8

Two Chimneys

3

37

73

1
2

Sheiling

87.7m

Green

Ridges

LB
56

Haddon

52

The Brambles

Fairways

Muirfield

The Thicket

The Maltings

Livingstone House

21

44

BEECHCROFT
20

46
Fair House
Warren House

Lyndale
Northfield

4

Linksview

Darat Alkhair

Pa

m)
(u
th

48

Fox Haven

48b

48a
5

Meddark House

1:1,540
Pit

(disused)

23

"This plan is provided to identify the location of thePage
site and
27
should not be used to identify the extent of the application site"
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.2
Section ‘3’ - Applications recommended for PERMISSION, APPROVAL or
CONSENT
Application No :

18/05662/FULL6

Address :

66 Elmstead Lane Chislehurst BR7 5EL

OS Grid Ref:

E: 542536 N: 171101

Applicant :

Elmstead Lane Limited

Ward:
Chislehurst
Objections: Yes

Description of Development:
Loft conversion including two rear dormers, two storey front gable extension, two
storey side extension, part one/ two storey/ rear extension and elevational
alterations.
Key designations:
Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Smoke Control SCA 10
Proposal
Planning permission is sought for a loft conversion including two rear dormers, two
storey front gable extension, two storey side extension, part one/ two storey/ rear
extension and elevational alterations.
The application can be divided into 4 main elements:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Loft conversion with two rear dormer windows
Two storey front gable extension
Removal of the existing garage & part one/two storey side and rear
extension
Elevational alterations including three front windows

1) Loft conversion
The drawings show that the existing loft is to be converted to be used as a fifth
bedroom. Three rooflights are shown to be inserted into the front rooflsope and two
rear dormers at the back. The rear dormers measure 1.5m in width x 1.9m in
height x 3.7m in depth. The roof extension will be finished in grey slate.
2) Two storey front gable extension
The front of the property is to be extended by 3.8m in width x 6.6m in height x 2.5m
in depth. The atrium would have glass panelling in the front and side elevations
and would match the design of No.78 Elmstead Lane. Brickwork is shown to match

Page 29

the existing house with a grey slate roof and black powder coated double glazed
windows.
3) Removal of existing garage & two storey side extension and part one/two storey
side rear extension
The existing garage located to the side of the property is shown to be demolished
and replaced with a two storey side & part one/two storey rear extension to
facilitate a reception room, utility room/WC and enlarged kitchen/diner on the
ground floor and additional bedrooms on the first and second floors. The new
house will measure 10.3m in width x 7.9m in height x 11.8m in depth (excluding the
front extension). The single storey rear extension measures 5m (ground floor) and
3m (first floor) in depth.
4) Elevational alterations
The footprint of the property would be increased to facilitate a larger property with
front, side and rear extensions (including the roof). The property will be finished
with a mixture of grey slate tiles, render and new black powder coated double
glazed windows in all elevations.
The application is accompanied by a Design & Access Statement and a Daylight
and Sunlight Study.
Location and Key Constraints
The application property is a detached two storey located on the north-eastern side
of Elmstead Lane. The property is not in a Conservation Area and is not a Listed
Building. The surrounding area is mainly residential in nature.
Comments from Local Residents and Groups
Nearby owners/occupiers were notified of the application and one representation
was received which can be summarised as follows:







Size and extent of the build in-keeping with the roads street scape and
current properties.
On going disputes with mobile phone company's unsightly electrical outlets
and phone masts directly adjacent to the property, already effecting the
views, parking and road disruption.
On going health issues of owners of 64 Elmstead lane Chislehurst , where
excess noise and stress would be a major health factor to a member of the
household whom previously suffered a stroke and is now unable to work.
Letters and medical information can be supplied to confirm this.
A non bias rights to light and overlooking survey needs to be issued and
sufficient time to perform these checks.
Limited access for works and vehicles along with boxing in of the site need
to be discussed.

Page 30



To conclude with such a substantial build these issues need to be officially
dealt with so current residents are able to continue a reasonable quality of
life with minimal disturbances.

Comments from Consultees
Highways - The development will result in loss of one parking space by conversion
of the garage to a habitable accommodation. However, there are spaces available
within the site's curtilage which would be utilised for parking. Therefore on balance
as it is a small development I raise no objection to this proposal.
Please include the following with any permission:
CONDITIONS
OC03 (Car Parking)
Policy Context
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets out
that in considering and determining applications for planning permission the local
planning authority must have regard to:(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
any other material considerations.

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it clear
that any determination under the planning acts must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
According to paragraph 216 of the NPPF decision takers can also give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
 The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
 The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may
be given); and
 The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to
the policies
The development plan for Bromley comprises the London Plan (March 2016) and
the Bromley Local Plan (2019). The application falls to be determined in
accordance with the following policies:
The London Plan (2016):
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.6

Local Character
Architecture

Page 31

Bromley Local Plan (2019)
Policy 6
Policy 8
Policy 37

Residential Extensions
Side Space
General Design of Development

Other Guidance:
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1 - General Design Principles
Supplementary Planning Guidance 2 - Residential Design Guidance
Planning History
There is no planning history associated with the site.
Of relevance is a similar development as the one proposed at No. 78 Elmstead
Lane (App Ref:- 16/03532/FULL6) for "two storey front gable extension and part
one/ two storey side/ rear extension and elevational alterations".
Considerations
It is considered the planning issues and considerations relate to:




Design and bulk
Neighbouring amenity
CIL

Design and Bulk
London Plan Policy 7.4 requires developments to have regard to the form, function,
and structure of an area. Policy BE1 states that all development proposals,
including extensions to existing buildings, will be expected to be of a high standard
of design and layout. Policy 6 states that the design and layout of proposals for the
alteration or enlargement of residential properties will be required to (i) the scale,
form and materials of construction should respect or complement those of the host
dwelling and be compatible with development in the surrounding area and (ii)
space or gaps between buildings should be respected or maintained where these
contribute to the character of the area. (iii) dormer windows should be of a size and
design appropriate to the roofscape and sited away from prominent roof pitches,
unless dormers are a feature of the area.
Policy 8 states that when considering applications for new residential development,
including extensions, the Council will normally require the following:
(i) for a proposal of two or more storeys in height, a minimum 1 metre space from
the side boundary of the site should be retained for the full height and length of the
flank wall of the building; or
(ii) where higher standards of separation already exist within residential areas,
proposals will be expected to provide a more generous side space. This will be the
case on some corner properties.

Page 32

The Council considers that the retention of space around residential buildings is
essential to ensure adequate separation and to safeguard the privacy and amenity
of adjoining residents. It is important to prevent a cramped appearance and
unrelated terracing from occurring. It is also necessary to protect the high spatial
standards and level of visual amenity which characterise many of the Borough's
residential areas. Proposals for the replacement of existing buildings will be
considered on their merits.
The Council will normally expect the design of residential extensions to blend with
the style and materials of the main building. Where possible, the extension should
incorporate a pitched roof and include a sympathetic roof design and materials.
The extension is to be finished in a mixture of brickwork, render, grey slate roof
tiles and black powder coated windows. The finish will be in contrast of the existing
brick built property but will match some other properties in Elmstead Lane including
78, 84, 86 & 88. The overall footprint of the property will be increased to the roof,
front, side and rear. Three new rooflights will be inserted into the front rooflsope
and two dormer windows to the rear.
The side extension will be located 1m from each shared boundary and will
therefore comply with Policy 8 of the Bromley Local Plan. The front extension will
add further bulk, scale and mass to the property but is not considered to look out of
keeping in the streetscene with the design being based on an existing permission
granted at No.78 Elmstead Lane.
However when considering the overall increase in bulk, scale and mass of the
property it is appreciated that similar development have previously granted further
down the street and whilst concern is raised that the extensions to the side and
rear would constitute a visually dominate additional to the host building the
extensions are considered to on balance an acceptable addition to the property
and are not considered to have an adverse impact on the character and
appearance of the host property.
Neighbouring Amenity
Policy 37 states that the development should respect the amenity of occupiers of
neighbouring building and those of future occupants and ensure their environments
are not harmed by noise and disturbance or by inadequate daylight, sunlight or
privacy or by overshadowing. This is supported within Policy 7.6 of the London
Plan.
The alterations to the property as a whole would be located 1m from either
boundary and the rear part one/part two storey extensions would extend 5m
(ground floor) & 3m (first floor) back from the rear of the host dwelling and 2.5m
from the rear boundary line of No.64 and 3.6m from the rear boundary line of
No.66. Given this separation and submission of a daylight sunlight report it is
considered that the proposals would not result in an un-neighbourly sense of
enclosure and loss of daylight / sunlight, to the detriment of the neighbouring
occupiers to warrant refusal of the application.

Page 33

No windows are proposed in the ground or first floor of the side extension and the
new windows to the front and rear are not considered to result in any significant
impact on privacy to the neighbouring property.
In terms of the elevational alterations and the change of windows to doors is mainly
cosmetic and as such it is considered that the proposal would not have any
significant impact on the neighbour's amenities in terms of loss of light, increase
sense of enclosure or outlook over the current situation.
With regards to the alterations to the roof and rear dormer windows, there are
existing windows in the rear elevation at ground and first floor level and therefore
given the overall size of the gardens and the orientation of the properties it is
considered that the proposal would not have any significant impact on the
neighbour's amenities in terms of loss of light, increase sense of enclosure or
outlook over and beyond the current situation.
For these reasons, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable
and complies with policy on neighbouring amenity.
CIL
The current application is not considered to be CIL liable.
Conclusion
Having had regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed extensions to
the loft, front, side and rear together with front roof lights and rear dormer windows
are an acceptable addition to the property and would not look out of keeping in the
streetscene or determinately impact neighbouring amenity.
Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above,
excluding exempt information.
RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION
Subject to the following conditions:
1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of 3 years, beginning with the date of this decision
notice.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990

2

The materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building shall be
as set out in the planning application forms and / or drawings unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 34

Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of
the area.
3

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than
in complete accordance with the plans approved under this planning
permission unless previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interests of visual and residential amenity.

4

Before commencement of the use of the land or building hereby permitted
parking spaces and/or garages and turning space shall be completed in
accordance with the details as set out in this planning permission and
thereafter shall be kept available for such use and no permitted
development whether permitted by the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order (England) 2015 (or any Order
amending, revoking and re-enacting this Order) or not shall be carried out
on the land or garages indicated or in such a position as to preclude
vehicular access to the said land or garages.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 30 of the Bromley Local Plan and to
avoid development without adequate parking or garage provision, which is
likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and would be
detrimental to amenities and prejudicial to road safety.

Page 35

This page is left intentionally blank

Application:18/05662/FULL6

Address: 66 Elmstead Lane Chislehurst BR7 5EL

Dra
i

23

Proposal: Loft conversion including two rear dormers, two storey front
gable extension, two storey side extension, part one/ two storey/ rear
extension and elevational alterations.
n
88

81.4m

18

39

76

DOW

13

NS

AVE
N

UE

43
44

Sports Ground
Chislehurst Sports &
Country Club

Pavilion
47

84.0m

The Cottage

7

64
51

1

Tennis Courts

52

MEL
A

NDA

1

22
56

52

1

2

52a

77.7m

92

TCB

L'escale

80.0m

50

61b

61

63

84

Em
m

aus

El Su
b

Sta

74

Elmstead
Glade Lodge

82.1m

"This plan is provided to identify the location of thePage
site and
37
should not be used to identify the extent of the application site"
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

1:1,330

CLO

SE

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.3
Section ‘3’ - Applications recommended for PERMISSION, APPROVAL or
CONSENT
Application No :

19/00124/FULL6

Address :

1 Denbigh Close Chislehurst BR7 5EB

OS Grid Ref:

E: 542726 N: 170784

Applicant :

Mr & Mrs Irwin

Ward:
Chislehurst
Objections: Yes

Description of Development:
First floor side extension to create additional bedroom with ensuite
Key designations:
Smoke Control SCA 10
Proposal
Planning permission is sought for the construction of a first floor side extension. The
extension would be 4.25m in width (same as approved under ref: 07/02931/FULL6) and 6.5m
deep (1.4m shallower than approved under ref: 07/02931/FULL6). The extension would be
set back from the front elevation by 0.2m and would have a pitched roof to a maximum height
of 7.7m (0.4m lower than approved in 2007).
The extension would be finished in matching render at the front and rear together with
matching facing brickwork to the flank.
The application was called to committee by the Local Ward Councillor.
Location and Key Constraints
The application site is a detached two-storey house located on the northern side of Denbigh
Close.
The property is not in a Conservation Area and is not a Listed Building. The surrounding area
is mainly residential in nature.
Comments from Local Residents and Groups
Nearby owners/occupiers were notified of the application and representations were received,
which can be summarised as follows:
Objections



Proposal is contrary to NPPF, Local Plan and SPG with regards to design and impact
on residential environment;
Design out of keeping with host building and area;

Page 39












The plans are unclear on how the render and brick will work together on the house;
Concern that the gutters are enclosed and would therefore not confirm with local
vernacular;
When viewed from No. 13a Clifford Avenue the extension would look like an office or
industrial facility;
The parapet wall will be higher than original house and result in a dominant feature;
Development would be detrimental to street scene,
Does not provide 1m side space;
Loss of light to garden and loss of private amenity;
Daylight survey should have been provided;
Plans are inaccurate;
Plans do not shown topography of site and how land slopes.

Support






The proposal would be in keeping with the other similar properties on the street which
have had very similar extensions;
Improve the visual amenity of the local area;
Provide an improvement in living space to the host dwelling;
Similar proposal has been approved in the past and this current one is smaller and
more sympathetically designed;
Permission should be given.

Local Groups
The Chislehurst Society wishes to make the following OBJECTION to the above application:
Generally, properties in the locality of the application site occupy generous plots. All
properties in Denbigh Close, including the application site, have a side space of c1m. width
giving access to the rear garden of the property. Dwellings having an attached garage to the
side elevation have not extended above the garage. It is noticeable that even when garages
of neighbouring dwellings abut there has been no sideways extensions over either garage
roof.
These ‘gaps’ provide ‘long-views’ from the street to the trees beyond and a light and airy feel
within the Close; adding to the quality of the setting for residents and the character of the
locality.
The application site has a side space of c1m. width along its eastern side giving access to
the rear garden of the property. On the western side an attached garage abuts the boundary
line with the neighbouring property in Clifford Avenue.
The proposed works, at first floor level, appears to be a side extension over the existing
garage that will result in a two-storey side flank wall abutting the boundary line with the
neighbouring property in Clifford Avenue.
As such, the proposal does not comply with BLP policies No P8.
Please note the above is a summary of objections received and full text is available on the
Council's website.

Page 40

Comments from Consultees
Tree Officer: No objections
Policy Context
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets out that in
considering and determining applications for planning permission the local planning authority
must have regard to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
any other material considerations.

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it clear that any
determination under the planning acts must be made in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The National Planning Policy Framework was published on 24 July 2018 and updated on 19
February 2019.
The development plan for Bromley comprises the Bromley Local Plan (Jan 2019) and the
London Plan (March 2016). The NPPF does not change the legal status of the development
plan.
The application falls to be determined in accordance with the following policies:
London Plan Policies (2016)
7.4 Local character
7.6 Architecture
Bromley Local Plan (2019)
6 Residential Extensions
8 Side Space
37 General Design of Development
73 Development and Trees
Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG1 – General Design Principles
SPG2 – Residential Design Guidance
Planning History
The relevant planning history relating to the application site is summarised as follows:
07/02931/FULL6 – Planning permission was granted for a two storey side extension
(05.10.2007).

Page 41

10/02127/EXTEND – Planning permission was granted for an extension of time limit for
implementation of permission reference 07/02931 granted for two storey side extension
(02.09.2010).
16/02370/FULL6 – Planning permission was granted for roof alterations to incorporate front
and rear dormers and single storey side/rear extension (23.06.2016).
Considerations
The main issues to be considered in respect of this application are:





Design
Side space
Neighbouring amenity
CIL

Design:
Design is a key consideration in the planning process. Good design is an important aspect of
sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively
to making places better for people. The NPPF states that it is important to plan positively for
the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development, including individual
buildings, public and private spaces and wider area development schemes.
London Plan and BLP policies further reinforce the principles of the NPPF setting out a clear
rationale for high quality design.
London Plan Policy 7.4 requires developments to have regard to the form, function, and
structure of an area. Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan states that all development
proposals, including extensions to existing buildings, will be expected to be of a high
standard of design and layout. Policy 6 of the BLP states that the design and layout of
proposals for the alteration or enlargement of residential properties will be required to (i) the
scale, form and materials of construction should respect or complement those of the host
dwelling and be compatible with development in the surrounding area and (ii) space or gaps
between buildings should be respected or maintained where these contribute to the character
of the area.
The Council will normally expect the design of residential extensions to blend with the style
and materials of the main building. Where possible, the extension should incorporate a
pitched roof and include a sympathetic roof design and materials.
Concerns have been raised over the design of the extension, however the extension is
considered to be sympathetically designed to complement the host building, the first floor is
set back and the ridge height lower than the host building, as such it is considered that the
extension would not appear overly bulky or dominant within the street scene, and would not
detract from the character and appearance of area generally.
The plans show the extension will be rendered to the front and rear with facing brickwork to
the side to blend with the existing ground floor of the house. The plans include an insulated
gutter which will prevent run-off going towards No. 13a, whilst the neighbouring houses do
not have this style of gutter, it is considered that this design approach would not be

Page 42

unacceptable or impact detrimentally on the character of the host building or street scene
generally.
Letters of support have also been received, these letters consider that the development
would complement the character of the host dwelling, be of a similar appearance to
neighbouring extension and would not impact detrimental on the street scene generally.
The extension would be visible from both Clifford Avenue and Denbigh Close and it is
considered that the development would complement the character and appearance of the
host dwelling and similar to the other extended properties within Denbigh Close and for these
reasons, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and complies with
policy on design.
Side Space:
Policy 8 of the Bromley Local Plan states that when considering applications for new
residential development, including extensions, the Council will normally require the following:
(i) for a proposal of two or more storeys in height, a minimum 1 metre space from the side
boundary of the site should be retained for the full height and length of the flank wall of the
building; or
(ii) where higher standards of separation already exist within residential areas, proposals will
be expected to provide a more generous side space. This will be the case on some corner
properties.
The Council considers that the retention of space around residential buildings is essential to
ensure adequate separation and to safeguard the privacy and amenity of adjoining residents.
It is important to prevent a cramped appearance and unrelated terracing from occurring. It is
also necessary to protect the high spatial standards and level of visual amenity which
characterise many of the Borough's residential areas. Proposals for the replacement of
existing buildings will be considered on their merits.
The proposed first floor side extension would be located above the existing garage which is
adjacent to the western boundary with the rear garden of No. 13a Clifford Avenue. Whilst the
proposal would not provide a "minimum 1 metre space from the side boundary of the site for
the full height and length of the flank wall of the building" the proposal would not result in a
terracing effect between the extension and any neighbouring property, the proposed
extension would also not cause a cramped appearance within the wider streetscene given
that the extension is adjacent to the rear garden of No. 13a. It is considered the separation
distance retained allows for high spatial standards and a high level of visual quality to be
maintained. Therefore does not conflict with the reason for the side space policy.
Neighbouring amenity:
Policy 37 of the BLP seeks to protect existing residential occupiers from inappropriate
development. Issues to consider are the impact of a development proposal upon
neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing, loss of light, overbearing impact,
overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise and disturbance. This is supported by London
Plan Policy 7.6.
Concerns have been raised over design which has been discussed above.

Page 43

With regards to the impact to No. 13a, a daylight/sunlight survey is not a validation
requirement for this form of development. No. 13a is located approximately 14m to the west
and it is noted that the parapet wall will be higher than the existing eaves, whilst a full
topographical survey has not been provided it can be seen that there are changes in land
levels between the two sites and the extension will be visible. Nevertheless, taking into
account the orientation together with the separation distance it is considered that the
development would not have any significant impact on the neighbouring amenities to warrant
refusal on this basis.
Concerns have been raised over the accuracy of the plans, the legality as to whether an
extension or development can be built is not a material planning consideration and would be
a civil matter if planning permission was granted. On site measurements of the height of the
garage and the rear extension to current ground floor levels were taken and these are
consistent with the measurements scaled from the submitted existing plans. If when building
it comes to light that the development cannot be completed in accordance with the approved
plans and need to be made larger then a new planning application maybe required however
this in itself would not be a reason for refusal.
In terms of loss of privacy, there are no windows proposed in the flank elevation, whilst this
does result in a blank façade it does alleviate any potential issues that may arise from
overlooking or perceived loss of privacy.
Having regard to the scale, siting, separation distance, orientation of the development, it is
not considered that a significant loss of amenity with particular regard to light, outlook,
prospect and privacy would arise.
CIL:
The Mayor of London's CIL is a material consideration. CIL is not payable on this application
and the applicant has completed the relevant form.
Conclusion
Having had regard to the above it is considered that the development in the manner
proposed is acceptable in that it would not result in a significant loss of amenity to local
residents nor impact detrimentally on the character of the area.
Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all correspondence
on the files set out in the Planning History section above, excluding exempt information.
RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION
Subject to the following conditions:
1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of 3 years, beginning with the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990

Page 44

2

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
complete accordance with the plans approved under this planning permission
unless previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interests of visual and residential amenity.

3

No windows or doors (other than those shown on the plans hereby approved)
shall at any time be inserted in the first floor western elevation(s) of the first
floor side extension hereby permitted.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the amenities of the adjacent properties.

4

The materials to be used for the external surfaces of the development hereby
permitted shall as far as is practicable match those of the existing building.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of the
area.

Page 45

This page is left intentionally blank

Application:19/00124/FULL6

Address: 1 Denbigh Close Chislehurst BR7 5EB
Proposal: First floor side extension to create additional bedroom with
ensuite

WARATAH DRI
VE

TCB
84

25

15

80.0m

74

Elmstead

Glade Lodge

82.1m

1

15

60

46

Gryphon

8

G LA D

Walde
n Par
ad

EA D

4

90.5m
94.2m

1

2

24

ELM S
T

RO AD

e
1

13

WALDE
N

LB

5

E

84.7m

e

31

Parad

29

2

Wa lden

2

1

1

23

5

8

8
19

13

9

19

ELMLEE CLOSE

Babington House
School

6

8

Knowle
Lodge

13a

NG

ED

RIV

1

E
La
ns
do
w

DEN
B

ne

7

GR
A

1a

2

IGH
C LO
SE

22
24
26
17

Ch

34

Lo
r

pp

erw

8

Ka

al

The Lantern
House

ell

ien

13

15

E

CL
IF

FO

RD

AV
E

NU

E

21

El Sub Sta

27

39

1:1,810
36

AV
EN

SY
LV
E

ST

ER

"This plan is provided to identify the location of thePage
site and
47
should not be used to identify the extent of the application site"
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

34

UE

10

13

OS

20

CL

10

L
ME

RY
BU

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.4
Section ‘3’ - Applications recommended for PERMISSION, APPROVAL or
CONSENT
Application No :

19/00202/FULL1

Address :

Century House 37 Church Road
Anerley London SE19 2TE

OS Grid Ref:

E: 533643 N: 170604

Applicant :

Mr F Macklin

Ward:
Crystal Palace
Objections: Yes

Description of Development:
Demolition of existing A1 use ex car showroom, erection of 4 storey building with
underground car parking for 9 cars to form 8no 2 bedroom flats and 1no 3 bedroom
flat with amenity spaces and refuse and cycle storage and new Commercial unit for
A1, A2 or A3 use
Key designations:
Conservation Area: Crystal Palace Park
Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Smoke Control SCA 6
Proposal
Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing A1 use ex car
showroom, erection of 4 storey building with underground car parking for 9 cars to
form 8no 2 bedroom flats and 1no 3 bedroom flat with amenity spaces and refuse
and cycle storage and a new commercial unit for A1, A2 or A3 use.
A contemporary design approach is opted for within the scheme. The proposed
building will have a footprint of approximately 27m width by 24m at its maximum
extents and takes a part four storey, part three storey format which steps up in its
massing arrangement between No45 and the adjacent cinema building to the
north. At first and second floor the footprint layout is 'L' shaped forming a
communal raised terrace area with screening and raised planters.
The third floor is located to the north side of the building set back from the front
elevation. The second floor south section is similarly set back. Both areas contain
external terraces. Two flat roofs are shown over each level of the building
respectively.
The proposed parking spaces would be located in the basement level accessed via
new crossover leading to an internal ramped access located to the southern end of
the front elevation adjacent to No45 Church Road.

Page 49

The ground floor will comprise a commercial unit of 170m² for a mixed A1/A2/A3
use to the northern section of the site adjoining the cinema building. The southern
ground floor section will incorporate a single residential unit to the rear of the
ground floor and a pedestrian/vehicular access, cycle and refuse storage to the
front.
An area of landscaped front curtilage is indicated at approximately 6m width
comprising a curtilage area for the commercial unit and separate curtilage area for
the residential entrance that aligns between the corner of the cinema building and
the front elevation of No45.
The application was supported by the following documents:



Design and Access Statement
Energy Statement

Location and Key Constraints
No's 37 to 41 Church Road comprises a part single and part two storey building
located on the eastern side of Church Road. The existing building footprint covers
the entire site measuring approximately 28.5m by 28m. The property was last
occupied as a garage (Use Class - sui-generis) and there is an unmade vehicular
access to the basement level off Milestone Road via a shared and unmade drive to
the rear of the site. The property has been vacant for a long period of time in
excess of 10 years. The property is not a listed building and is not considered to
have any special architectural merits.
The site is located within the Crystal Palace Park Conservation Area. Opposite the
site is Upper Norwood Triangle Conservation Area which is under the
administrative area of London Borough of Croydon. The site is in a close proximity
to the boundaries of Westow Hill Conservation Area which falls under the
administrative area of London Borough of Lambeth.
The site is predominately surrounded by a mixture of residential and commercial
properties ranging between 2 storey and 6 storey in height. Along part of Church
Road many of the commercial units are interspersed with residential buildings
including larger residential blocks and to a lesser degree semi-detached housing.
The site is bounded to the north by a large building occupied as a recently restored
cinema, to the south the building is bounded by a pair of semi-detached houses.
The site is located on a slope and the ground level of the site is elevated against
the houses on Patterson Road by approximately 5 metres.
The site is located within Crystal Palace Renewal Area (Upper Norwood/Crystal
Palace District Centre in the London Plan) and forms part of the proposed
secondary shopping frontage in the Council's Draft Local Plan.
The public transport accessibility of the site is excellent and rated at 6a, on a scale
between 0 to 6b where 0 is worst and 6b is best. There are on-street marked

Page 50

parking bays and an on-street loading bay outside the site. The site is located
within flood zone 1 and has a low probability of flooding.
Comments from Local Residents and Groups
Nearby owners/occupiers were notified of the application and representations were
received, which can be summarised as follows:
Objections
 Concerns for pedestrian safety with cars having to cross on to the pavement
to access the garage.
 Height of the side wall is significantly higher the existing building.
 No alterations of any significance to the new plans. Plans are virtually
identical to the previous ones.
 Inaccuracies in D&A statement.
 Design falls short of standard of Everyman Cinema with none of the
traditional design elements appropriate for the design and period of the host
building. Proposed design is not harmonious with area.
 Harm to historic and sensitive heritage location at this part of Church Road.
 Scale, style, inappropriate articulation does not reflect the immediate area
and its heritage setting and its linear views.
 Concerns raised over harm to character and appearance of both
conservation areas.
 Sound proofing is required adjacent to the cinema.
Support


Welcome the investment in the building and the commercial element which
will partially plug the gap between commercial parades on this side of
Church Road.

Local Groups


Crystal Palace Triangle Planning Group has commented in respect of poor
design in relation to the conservation area status of the locality, poor regard
to updated policies on the town centre, excessive parking at the site which
should be zero provision and the location of vehicle access to the car park
area, landscaping on Church Road and sound proofing in relation to the
adjacent cinema.

Adjoining Borough Consultation
London Borough of Croydon:
The Council as adjoining Local Planning Authority wishes to raise no objection to
the application.
Comments from Consultees

Page 51

Advisory Panel for Conservation Areas:
No objection.
Conservation Officer:
The general bulk and scale of the proposal is acceptable and similar to that on
previous proposals. However the detail has greatly improved from the refused
scheme (18/01970/FULL1) insofar as we now have details of the ground floor
shopfronts which seem acceptable. They have also provided slightly more active
frontage and the fenestration has been improved in terms of additional openings
and detailing. The proposal is in accordance with Policy 41.
Secure by Design:
This development should achieve Secured by Design accreditation, but feel that
the proposed development has a number of areas which need to be addressed
and would benefit from consultation with a design out crime officer. Primarily,
controlled access to building and parking area, defensible space for the ground
floor dwellings, the use of tested and accredited doors and windows, secure cycle
and waste storage and the visitor and mail delivery strategies, and all the
associated security problems which these can present. It is imperative that
residential premises such as this, in a high crime area should be built according to
the principles and measures of Secured By Design.
Thames Water:
With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water would advise that if the
developer follows the sequential approach to the disposal of surface water we
would have no objection. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public
sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required.
Thames Water would advise that with regard to waste water network and waste
water process infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the
above planning application, based on the information provided.
On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with regard
to water network and water treatment infrastructure capacity, we would not have
any objection to the above planning application.
The proposed development is located within 5m of a strategic water main. Thames
Water do NOT permit the building over or construction within 5m, of strategic water
mains and have contacted the developer in an attempt to agree how the, asset will
be diverted / development will be aligned. We have been unable to agree a
position in the time available. A planning condition is recommended in this regard.
The proposed development is located within 15m of a strategic water main. A
planning condition is recommended in this regard.

Page 52

Environmental Health Pollution Officer:
No objections within the grounds of consideration, subject to safeguarding
measures to safeguard the amenity of residents and restrict cooking odours, whilst
giving flexibility for an A3 us such as a coffee shop which may not require a full
extract system.
The commercial unit shall not be used for A3 until either (a) a planning application
has been made and approved for a kitchen extract system and works have been
completed and approved in writing by the local planning authority OR (b) the local
planning authority have been consulted and confirmed in writing that no kitchen
extract system is required.
In my opinion the Condition is necessary in order to safeguard the amenity of
residents and restrict cooking odours, whilst giving flexibility for an A3 us such as a
coffee shop which may not require a full extract system.
The application site is within an Air Quality Management Area declared for NOx.
Therefore, order to
minimise the impact of the development on local air quality any gas boilers must
meet a dry NOx emission rate of <40mg/kWh. This is minimise the effect of the
development on local air quality within an Air Quality Management Area.
A construction management plan condition and informative
contamination if discovered during works are also recommended..

relating

to

Drainage Engineer:
The applicant is required to maximise the use of SUDS to attenuate for surface
water run-off.
Highways:
The site is located in an area with high PTAL rate of 6 (on a scale of 1-6, where 6b
is the most accessible). Parking on Church Road and surrounding area is limited.
However there are a number of on street parking spaces on opposite side.
The vehicular access is from the front of the development via a new vehicular
crossover leading to the basement car park. This is acceptable in principle. All
redundant crossovers should be reinstated to the footway level at the applicant's
expense. Nine car parking spaces are indicated on the submitted plans. This is
satisfactory. Eighteen secure cycle parking spaces would be provided which is
acceptable.
Energy Officer:
I've reviewed the Century House energy statement and everything looks in order
from a carbon/energy point of view. I'm satisfied that a suitable number and variety
of measures have been considered for this particular development.

Page 53

As the application currently stands, the Carbon Offsetting payment-in-lieu figure for
the residential areas breaks down as follows:
 On site regulated carbon dioxide emissions (Building Regs 2013 Compliant
Development) = 14.95 tCO2 per annum
 Proposed on site reduction of carbon emissions
demand/CHP/renewables = 5.42 tCO2 per annum

from

energy

 On site shortfall = 9.53 tCO2 per annum
 Payment-in-lieu amount calculated as 9.53 (tCO2) x £60 (per tCO2) x 30
(years) = £17,154
Policy Context
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets out
that in considering and determining applications for planning permission the local
planning authority must have regard to:(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
any other material considerations.

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it clear
that any determination under the planning acts must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The National Planning Policy Framework was published on 19th February 2019.
The development plan for Bromley comprises the London Plan (March 2016) and
the Bromley Local Plan (January 2019). The NPPF does not change the legal
status of the development plan.
London Plan Policies
2.6
Outer London: vision and strategy
2.7
Outer London: Economy
2.8
Outer London: Transport
2.14 Areas for regeneration
2.15 Town Centres
3.3
Increasing Housing Supply
3.4
Optimising Housing Potential
3.5
Quality and Design of Housing Developments
3.6
Children and young people's play and informal recreation facilities
3.8
Housing Choice
3.9
Mixed and Balanced Communities
4.1
Developing London's Economy
4.7
Retail and Town Centre Development
4.8
Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector and related facilities and
services

Page 54

5.1
Climate change mitigation
5.2
Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
5.3
Sustainable Design and Construction
5.7
Renewable Energy
5.8
Innovative energy technologies
5.9
Overheating and cooling
5.10 Urban Greening
5.11 Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
5.12 Flood Risk Management
5.13 Sustainable Drainage
5.14 Water quality and wastewater Infrastructure
5.15 Water use and supplies
5.16 Waste self-sufficiency
5.17 Waste capacity
5.18 Construction, excavation and demolition waste
5.21 Contaminated land
6.3
Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity
6.5
Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
6.9
Cycling
6.12 Road Network Capacity
6.13 Parking
7.1
Lifetime Neighbourhoods
7.2
An Inclusive Environment
7.3
Designing Out Crime
7.4
Local Character
7.5
Public Realm
7.6
Architecture
7.8
Heritage Assets and Archaeology
7.14 Improving Air Quality
7.15 Reducing and Managing Noise, Improving and Enhancing the Acoustic
Environment and Promoting Appropriate Soundscapes.
7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
7.21 Trees and Woodlands
8.3
Community Infrastructure Levy
Bromley Local Plan
1
4
8
13
14
15
30
32
33
34
37
41
73

Housing supply
Housing design
Side Space
Renewal Areas
Development Affecting Renewal Areas
Crystal Palace, Penge and Anerley Renewal Area
Parking
Road Safety
Access for All
Highway Infrastructure Provision
General design of development
Conservation Areas
Development and Trees

Page 55

77
79
94
112
113
115
116
117
118
119
120
122
123
124
125

Landscape Quality and Character
Biodiversity and Access to Nature
District Centres
Planning for Sustainable Waste management
Waste Management in New Development
Reducing flood risk
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)
Water and Wastewater Infrastructure Capacity
Contaminated Land
Noise Pollution
Air Quality
Light Pollution
Sustainable Design and Construction
Carbon reduction, decentralised energy networks and renewable energy
Delivery and implementation of the Local Plan

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1: General Design Principles
Supplementary Planning Guidance 2: Residential Design Guidance
Housing: Supplementary Planning Guidance. (March 2016)
Technical housing standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
Crystal Palace Park Conservation Area SPG
Planning History
The relevant planning history relating to the application site is summarised as
follows:
02/00134/FULL1: Demolition of existing building and erection of three/four storey
building comprising 1 one bedroom, 9 two bedroom and 1 three bedroom flats and
10 basement car parking spaces (37-41 Church Road). Approved 27.03.2003.
02/00132/CAC: Demolition of existing buildings (37 - 41 Church Road)
(Conservation Area Consent). Approved 26.03.2003
Prior to the introduction by the Government for the formal discharge of planning
conditions, letters were issued by the Council to discharge the following conditions
of planning permission ref 02/00134 FULL1:





Condition 7 approved 28 November 2003
Condition 13 approved 9 January 2004
Conditions 11 & 12 approved 9 January 2004
Conditions 3, 4, 5, 6 and 17 approved 4 October 2004

08/00620/FULL1: Demolition of existing building and erection of three/four storey
building comprising 1 one bedroom/ 9 two bedroom/ 1 three bedroom flats and 10
basement car parking spaces at 37-41 Church Road (amendment to planning
permission granted under reference 02/00134). Approved 12.05.2008.

Page 56

17/01699/PLUD: Confirmation of commencement of development of planning
application ref 02/00134/FULL1 for demolition of existing building and erection of
three/four storey building comprising 1 one bedroom, 9 two bedroom and 1 three
bedroom flats and 10 basement car parking spaces (37-41 Church Road). Lawful
Development Certificate (Proposed). Refused 29.6.2016
The refusal reason stated that insufficient information had been submitted to
enable the local planning authority to establish that the development had
commenced within 5 years from the date of the grant of planning permission on
27th March 2003. The proposal did not therefore comply with the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Part III Section 56 (as amended).
17/05395: Confirmation of commencement of development of planning application
ref 02/00134/FULL1 for demolition of existing building and erection of three/four
storey building comprising 1 one bedroom, 9 two bedroom and 1 three bedroom
flats and 10 basement car parking spaces (37-41 Church Road). Lawful
Development Certificate (Proposed). Refused 26.01.2018
The refusal reason stated again that insufficient information has been submitted to
enable the local planning authority to establish that the development had
commenced within 5 years from the date of the grant of planning permission on
27th March 2003. The proposal does not therefore comply with the provisions of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Part III Section 56 (as amended).
18/01970/FULL1 Demolition of existing ex car showroom (Use Class: Sui Generis),
erection of 4 storey building with underground car parking for 9 cars to form 8no 2
bedroom flats and 1no 3 bedroom flat with amenity spaces and refuse and cycle
storage and new commercial unit for A1, A2 or A3 use. Refused 20.08.2018.
The refusal reasons stated that the proposed development which relates to the
Crystal Palace, Penge and Anerley Renewal Area did not seek to maximise the
opportunities for enhancement and improvement within this Renewal Area or make
the maximum positive contribution to the vitality of the centre within Crystal Palace
District Centre consistent with its heritage values and significance and for the
benefit of the wider area.
The design of the development, its prominent siting on Church Road and its
relationship to the existing and adjacent buildings was not considered compatible
with the character of the surrounding development failing to preserve or enhance
the character of the conservation area and representing an inappropriate and
visually obtrusive development detrimental to the character and visual amenities of
the locality.
Insufficient information was submitted to enable the local planning authority to
establish that the car park access ramp to and from the site would not be liable to
prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety along the adjacent
highway.
The development also failed to achieve the targets for carbon dioxide emissions
reduction for new residential and non domestic buildings.

Page 57

Considerations
The main issues to be considered in respect of this application are:











Resubmission
Principle
Design, Scale and Layout
Standard of residential accommodation
Highways
Neighbouring amenity
Sustainability
Trees and biodiversity
Other (drainage/flooding/noise/pollution)
CIL and Planning Obligations

Resubmission
The application is a resubmission of a previously refused application. The applicant
has stated the following main amendments to the scheme:
 Redesign of the frontage to be more sympathetic to the road and give a
better, active frontage.
 Vehicle access ramp and energy technical issues are addressed.
 The façade has a revised articulation to pick up on window proportions,
styles and surrounds, to reflect local building character.
 Paved forecourt dining/sales area proposed.
Principle
The NPPF (2019) sets out in paragraph 11 a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. In terms of decision-making, the document states that where a
development accords with an up to date local plan, applications should be
approved without delay. Where a plan is out of date, permission should be granted
unless the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken
as a whole.
Policy 4.7 of the London Plan details that in taking planning decisions on proposed
retail and town centre development the scale of retail, commercial, culture and
leisure development should be related to the size, role and function of a town
centre and its catchment and that retail, commercial, culture and leisure
development should be focused on sites within town centres, or if no in-centre sites
are available, on sites on the edges of centres that are, or can be, well integrated
with the existing centre and public transport.

Page 58

Policy 94 of the Bromley Local Plan states that in secondary frontages within
Crystal Palace, the Council consider a change of use away from Class A1 where
the proposal would provide a service that complements the shopping function of
the centre; not harm the retail character, attractiveness, vitality and viability of the
centre, including unreasonably reducing the number of Class A1 units; retain an
appearance which is compatible with the adjoining shops/premises and provide an
active frontage at ground floor level.
The site is within the Crystal Palace District Centre (shared between Lambeth,
Croydon and Bromley boroughs). Sections of Church Road including the site are
identified as secondary shopping frontage. Church Road marks the boundary
between Bromley and Croydon Boroughs. Croydon Borough's side is designated
as a "primary shopping area" and contains sections of secondary frontage. On
Bromley Borough's side, there are two sections of secondary frontage separated
by a residential area. The site lies at the southern edge of the northern section of
secondary frontage. The site has been vacant and derelict for many years but was
previously occupied by a car showroom (sui generis).
The site is also located within a broader Renewal Area designation, in the Bromley
Local Plan, covering Crystal Palace, Penge and Anerley areas. Bromley Local Plan
Policy 15 relates to Crystal Palace, Penge and Anerley Renewal Area. The policy
states that proposals within this Renewal Area will be expected to take advantage
of opportunities to contribute to, and benefit from, the thriving cultural and leisure
economy which has evolved in the Crystal Palace District Centre. Policy 13 also
states that proposals will be expected to make a positive contribution to the vitality
of centres, having regard for their importance as providers of both local facilities
and local employment.
It is acknowledged that the site has been vacant for some time and the proposed
mixed use scheme will contribute positively to the vitality and viability of the town
centre. The active frontage now proposed has been improved from the previously
refused scheme. On balance the proposal now appears to be consistent with the
intentions of Policies 13, 15 and 94 and the spirit of London Plan Policies 2.14,
2.15, 4.7 and 4.8.
Density
Policy 3.4 in the London Plan seeks to ensure that development proposals achieve
the optimum housing density compatible with local context, the design principles in
Chapter 7 of the plan and with public transport capacity. Table 3.2 (Sustainable
residential quality) identifies appropriate residential density ranges related to a
site's setting (assessed in terms of its location, existing building form and massing)
and public transport accessibility (PTAL).
The site has a high PTAL rating of 6 and is within an urban setting. In accordance
with Table 3.2, the recommended density range for the site would be 55-225
dwellings per hectare.

Page 59

The proposed development would have a density of 119 dwellings per hectare
within the suggested ranges in relation to unit density. This may be considered an
acceptable amount of development at this location given the available site area.
However, a numerical calculation of density is only one aspect in assessing the
acceptability of a residential development and Policy 3.4 is clear that in optimising
housing potential, developments should take account of local context and
character, design principles and public transport capacity which are assessed
below.
Design
Design is a key consideration in the planning process. Good design is an important
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should
contribute positively to making places better for people.
Paragraph 124 of the NPPF (2019) states that the creation of high quality buildings
and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities.
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF (2019) requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure
that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not
just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually
attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping and are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities). New
development shall also establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the
arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive,
welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit; optimise the potential of the
site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
London Plan and Bromley Local Plan policies further reinforce the principles of the
NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality design.
The NPPF sets out in section 16 the tests for considering the impact of a
development proposal upon designated and non-designated heritage assets. The
test is whether the proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total
loss of significance of a designated heritage asset and whether it can be
demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial
public benefits. A range of criteria apply.

Page 60

Paragraph 196/197 state where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. The effect of an application on the
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect
non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset
Within a Conservation Area Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places a requirement on a local planning authority in
relation to development in a Conservation Area, to pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.
Interpretation of the 1990 Act in law has concluded that preserving the character of
the Conservation Area can not only be accomplished through positive contribution
but also through development that leaves the character or appearance of the area
unharmed.
London Plan and Bromley Local Plan policies further reinforce the principles of the
NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality design.
Policies 3.4 and 3.5 of the London Plan reflect the same principles. Policy 3.4 of
the London Plan specifies that Boroughs should take into account local context and
character, the design principles (in Chapter 7 of the Plan) and public transport
capacity; development should also optimise housing output for different types of
location within the relevant density range. This reflects paragraph 127 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, which requires development to respond to
local character and context and optimise the potential of sites.
The public realm is also an important aspect of any development as it ensures that
the development is integrated into and enhances the existing character and use of
the area. All residential and commercial development is required by policy to
contribute towards good design which extends to the consideration of the public
realm (London Plan Policy 7.5).
Policies 7.4 of the London Plan states that buildings, streets and open spaces
should provide a high quality design response that has regard to the pattern and
grain of the existing spaces and streets in orientation, scale, proportion and mass;
contributes to a positive relationship between the urban structure and natural
landscape features, including the underlying landform and topography of an area;
is human in scale, ensuring buildings create a positive relationship with street level
activity and people feel comfortable with their surroundings; allows existing
buildings and structures that make a positive contribution to the character of a
place to influence the future character of the area; is informed by the surrounding
historic environment.
Policy 7.6 of the London Plan states that buildings and structures should be of the
highest architectural quality, be of a proportion, composition, scale and orientation
that enhances, activates and appropriately defines the public realm; comprise

Page 61

details and materials that complement, not necessarily replicate, the local
architectural character; not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential buildings, in relation to privacy,
overshadowing, wind and microclimate.
Policy 7.8 of the London Plan states that development should identify, value,
conserve, restore, re-use and incorporate heritage assets, where appropriate.
Development affecting heritage assets and their settings should conserve their
significance, by being sympathetic to their form, scale, materials and architectural
detail.
Policy 4 of the Local Plan details that all new housing developments will need to
achieve a high standard of design and layout whilst enhancing the quality of local
places respecting local character, spatial standards, physical context and density.
To summarise the Council will expect all of the following requirements to be
demonstrated: The site layout, buildings and space around buildings be designed
to a high quality, recognising as well as complimenting the qualities of the
surrounding areas; compliance to minimum internal space standards for dwellings;
provision of sufficient external, private amenity space; provision of play space,
provision of parking integrated within the overall design of the development;
density that has regard to the London Plan density matrix whilst respecting local
character; layout giving priority to pedestrians and cyclists over vehicles; safety
and security measures included in the design and layout of buildings; be
accessible and adaptable dwellings.
Policy 8 of the Local Plan details that when considering applications for new
residential development, including extensions, the Council will normally require for
a proposal of two or more storeys in height, a minimum 1 metre space from the
side boundary of the site should be retained for the full height and length of the
building or where higher standards of separation already exist within residential
areas, proposals will be expected to provide a more generous side space.
Policy 37 of the Local Plan details that all development proposals, including
extensions to existing buildings, will be expected to be of a high standard of design
and layout. To summarise developments will be expected to meet all of the
following criteria where they are relevant; be imaginative and attractive to look at,
of a good architectural quality and should complement the scale, proportion, form,
layout and materials of adjacent buildings and areas; positively contribute to the
existing street scene and/or landscape and respect important views, heritage
assets, skylines, landmarks or landscape features; create attractive settings; allow
for adequate daylight and sunlight to penetrate in and between buildings; respect
the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring buildings and those of future occupants;
be of a sustainable design and construction; accessible to all; secure; include;
suitable waste and refuse facilities and respect non designated heritage assets.
Policy 41 of the Local Plan details that proposals for new development within a
conservation area will need to preserve and enhance its characteristics and
appearance by respecting or complementing the layout, scale, form and materials
of existing buildings and spaces and respecting and incorporating in the design

Page 62

existing landscape or other features that contribute to the character, appearance or
historic value of the area; and using high quality materials.
It is noted that the application is a revised submission with modification to the
design which has been detailed above.
The site needs to be considered within its urban context in relation to its location on
Church Road within the District Centre. However, regard must also be had to the
fact that the town centre boundary runs along the southern flank boundary of the
site where it adjoins No45, which is a semi-detached interwar property. The
transition between the two areas is therefore important to achieve in an appropriate
townscape relationship.
Overall, the bulk and scale of the scheme is generally considered acceptable and
the set back of the replacement building footprint to the streetscene is welcomed. It
is noted that there is no gap to either flank elevation as existing. However, the
lower height of the building adjacent to No45, albeit higher than existing is
considered to create an appropriate step up in building scales along Church Road
as the context of the locality changes to a more urban public realm. As the building
moves north the second step up provides a further transition to allow the massing
form of the building to address the greater scale of the adjacent cinema building.
The southern flank wall of the building has also been provided with some design
relief via brick banding that helps reduce the impact of the flank wall to streetscene
views.
In terms of the general design approach, Paragraph 7.21 of the London Plan states
that architecture should contribute to the creation of a cohesive built environment
that enhances the experience of living, working or visiting in the city. This is often
best achieved by ensuring new buildings reference, but not necessarily replicate,
the scale, mass and detail of the predominant built form surrounding them, and by
using the highest quality materials. Contemporary architecture is encouraged, but it
should be respectful and sympathetic to the other architectural styles that have
preceded it in the locality.
In the previous scheme some concerns were raised with the clean and simple
styling of the proposal not being in keeping with the character of the surrounding
area and the proposed street level elevation not providing a fully active frontage.
Opposite the site are period buildings with traditionally designed shop fronts. The
revised elevation designs now proposed have resulted in more articulate elevations
facing the streetscene on Church Road. The active frontage has also been
extended in width and a design put forward for a commercial frontage.
On balance, the more articulated styling and revised design approach of the
contemporary design along with the commercial frontage proposed now responds
positively to local context and is considered to be an appropriate design response
to the mixed character of the neighbouring sites and appears as a balanced
addition to the streetscene and the local character and appearance of the Crystal
Palace conservation areas within Bromley Borough and Croydon Borough.

Page 63

Standard of residential accommodation
In March 2015 the Government published The National Technical Housing
Standards. This document prescribes internal space within new dwellings and is
suitable for application across all tenures. It sets out requirements for the Gross
Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a defined level of occupancy as well as
floor areas and dimensions for key parts of the home, notably bedrooms, storage
and floor to ceiling height. The Gross Internal Areas in this standard will not be
adequate for wheelchair housing (Category 3 homes in Part M of the Building
Regulations) where additional internal area is required to accommodate increased
circulation and functionality to meet the needs of wheelchair households.
Policy 4 of the Local Plan sets out the requirements for new residential
development to ensure a good standard of amenity for future occupiers. The
Mayor's Housing SPG sets out guidance in respect of the standard required for all
new residential accommodation to supplement London Plan policies. The
standards apply to new build, conversion and change of use proposals. Part 2 of
the Housing SPG deals with the quality of residential accommodation setting out
standards for dwelling size, room layouts and circulation space, storage facilities,
floor to ceiling heights, outlook, daylight and sunlight, external amenity space
(including refuse and cycle storage facilities) as well as core and access
arrangements to reflect the Governments National Technical Housing Standards.
The London Plan makes clear that ninety percent of new housing should meet
Building Regulation requirement M4 (2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings' and
ten per cent of new housing should meet Building Regulation requirement M4 (3)
'wheelchair user dwellings', i.e. is designed to be wheelchair accessible, or easily
adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users. The relevant category of
Building Control Compliance should be secured by planning conditions.
The floor space size of each of the units ranges between 71.2m² and 108.4m²
respectively. The nationally described space standards require a GIA of 70m² for a
two bedroom four person unit and 86m² for three bedroom five person unit in
relation to the number of persons, floors and bedrooms mix. On this basis, the
floorspace size provision for all of the units is compliant with the required standards
and is considered acceptable.
The shape and room size in the proposed units is generally considered satisfactory
for the units where none of the rooms would have a particularly convoluted shape
which would limit their specific use. A number of the units are single aspect,
however a good level of outlook is achieved within these units and on balance they
are considered to provide a suitable level of accommodation.
In terms of amenity space a mix of private and communal spaces are provided and
are of a depth and width of sufficient proportion to provide a usable space for the
purposes of each unit.

Page 64

Highways
The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in
facilitating sustainable development but also in contributing to wider sustainability
and health objectives. The NPPF clearly states that transport issues should be
considered from the earliest stage of both plan making and when formulating
development proposals and development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are
severe.
The NPPF states that all developments that will generate significant amounts of
movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application should
be supported by a transport statement or transport assessment so that the likely
impacts of the proposal can be assessed.
London Plan and Bromley Local Plan Policies encourage sustainable transport
modes whilst recognising the need for appropriate parking provision. Car parking
standards within the London Plan and Bromley Local Plan should be used as a
basis for assessment.
Car parking
The Council's Highway Officer has reviewed the current application from a
technical point of view and not raised any objection to the level of parking provided
off road at the site and the use of the vehicular access to Church Road. Previous
concerns raised regarding the access ramp gradient have also been provided and
are now considered satisfactory.
Cycle parking
Cycle parking is required to be 2 spaces for the units as proposed. Twenty spaces
are indicated in two locations in the basement car parking area which is
acceptable.
Refuse
All new developments shall have adequate facilities for refuse and recycling. The
applicant has provided details of an integral refuse storage area adjacent to the
front vehicle and pedestrian entrance to the building. The location is considered
acceptable and landscaping has improved how the facility has been separated
from the commercial frontage. On balance the revisions in this regard are
considered acceptable.
Neighbouring amenity
Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan seeks to respect the amenity of occupiers of
neighbouring buildings and those of future occupants, providing healthy
environments and ensuring they are not harmed by noise and disturbance,
inadequate daylight, sunlight, privacy or by overshadowing.

Page 65

Policy 4 of the Bromley Local Plan also seeks to protect existing residential
occupiers from inappropriate development. Issues to consider are the impact of a
development proposal upon neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing,
loss of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise and
disturbance.
The proposed building is indicated to be constructed adjacent to the boundary with
No45 in the same manner as the existing building on site. It is noted that the flank
wall of the proposed building is higher to the front section of the elevation closer to
Church Road and adjacent to the flank wall of the house at No45. However the
rear section of the proposed flank boundary wall will be of lesser height due to the
L shaped layout of the upper sections of the building creating a massing set back
at the upper level away from No45. On balance the massing relationship to No45 is
not considered to be overbearing to any greater extent than the current situation on
site. Given the local context this relationship is considered acceptable.
In terms of outlook, the fenestration arrangement will provide front, rear and flank
elevation outlook. Windows to the flank elevation will be from the inner flank
elevation facing south into the communal terrace area. There are no windows
indicated in the flank elevation facing No45.
The buildings upper inner flank elevation will sit approximately 18m facing distance
to the boundary with the rear garden at No45 Church Road. To the rear the main
rear elevation will be approximately 23m from the rear elevations of buildings
fronting Paterson Road at a raised level due to site level differences. The
communal terrace area will be closer and also at a raised level. Solid screening
has been provided around the communal terraces to mitigate overlooking. Juliet
balconies with full height windows are indicated to living room windows to the flats
at the rear and also to flats at the front overlooking the street. In terms of loss of
privacy and overlooking it is considered that at the distances proposed and where
windows overlook the streetscene the proposed building would not be detrimental
to neighbouring amenity.
Sustainability and Energy
The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to adopt proactive strategies to
mitigate and adapt to climate change. London Plan and Draft Local Plan Policies
advocate the need for sustainable development. All new development should
address climate change and reduce carbon emissions.
Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction of the London Plan states that the
highest standards of sustainable design and construction should be achieved in
London to improve the environmental performance of new developments and to
adapt to the effects of climate change over their lifetime.
Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions of the London Plan states that
development should make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide
emissions in accordance with the hierarchy; Be Lean: use less energy; Be clean:
supply energy efficiently and Be green: use renewable energy.

Page 66

Local Plan Policy 123 states that all applications for development should
demonstrate how the principles of sustainable design and construction have been
taken into account.
London Plan Policy 5.2B sets a "zero carbon" target residential development - that
is, the residential element of a major development scheme should achieve at least
a 35% reduction in regulated carbon dioxide emissions (beyond Part L 2013) on
site. Where developments are not able to achieve the carbon dioxide targets, the
developer can install a carbon saving project off-site or make a contribution to the
local off-setting fund.
The Energy statement details that a payment-in-lieu amount calculated as £17,154
is to be paid to satisfy the policy requirement. The Councils Energy Officer has
reviewed the calculation and is satisfied in respect of the offset payment.
Trees and Landscaping.
Policy 73 of the Bromley Local Plan states that proposals for new development will
be required to take particular account of existing trees on the site and on adjoining
land, which in the interests of visual amenity and/or wildlife habitat, are considered
desirable to be retained.
Policy 77 of the Bromley Local Plan states that development proposals will seek to
safeguard the quality and character of the local landscape and seek the
appropriate restoration and enhancement of the local landscape through the use of
planning obligations and conditions.
An indicative landscaping layout has been submitted as shown on the proposed
site plan drawing that details the areas given over to landscaping and external
amenity for future occupiers. Further details for landscaping are recommended to
be obtained by condition.
CIL
The Mayor of London's CIL is a material consideration. CIL is payable on this
application and the applicant has completed the relevant form.
Planning Obligations
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in dealing with
planning applications, local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise
unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of
conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should only be used where
it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning condition. It
further states that where obligations are being sought or revised, local planning
authorities should take account of changes in market conditions over time and,
wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being
stalled. The NPPF also sets out that planning obligations should only be secured
when they meet the following three tests:

Page 67

(a) Necessary to make the development acceptable
(b) Directly related to the development; and,
(c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
Paragraph 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (April 2010) puts
the above three tests on a statutory basis, making it illegal to secure a planning
obligation unless it meets the three tests. From 5th April 2015, it is necessary to
link Education, Health and similar proposals to specific projects in the Borough to
ensure that pooling regulations are complied with. This is supported by Bromley
Local Plan Policy 125 and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD.
The identified Head of Terms are as follows:


Carbon offsetting - £17,154.

Conclusion
The revised proposed development maximises opportunities for enhancement and
improvement within the Crystal Palace Renewal Area. The development would
have a high quality design and would not have an unacceptable impact on the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers. It is considered that the density and unit type of
the proposed scheme is acceptable on balance and that the development would
not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the conservation area and
locality. The standard of the accommodation that will be created will be good. The
proposal would not have an adverse impact on the local road network or local
parking conditions. The proposal would be constructed in a sustainable manner
and would achieve good levels of energy efficiency. It is therefore recommended
that planning permission is granted subject to the imposition of suitable conditions.
Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above,
excluding exempt information.
RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION SUBJECT TO THE PRIOR COMPLETION OF A
LEGAL AGREEMENT
and the following conditions:
1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of 3 years, beginning with the date of this decision
notice.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990

2

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than
in complete accordance with the plans approved under this planning
permission unless previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interests of visual and residential amenity.

Page 68

3

(a) Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved
(excluding any ground clearance or demolition) a scheme for the provision
of surface water drainage shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the local planning authority.
(b) Before the details required to satisfy Part (a) are submitted an
assessment shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface
water by means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) to ground,
watercourse or sewer in accordance with drainage hierarchy contained
within the London Plan Policy 5.13 and the advice contained within the
National SuDS Standards.
(c) Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be provided, the submitted
details shall:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the
method employed to delay (attenuate) and control the rate of surface water
discharged from the site as close to greenfield runoff rates (8l/s/ha) as
reasonably practicable and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface water
(d) The drainage scheme approved under Parts a, b and c shall be
implemented in full prior to first occupation of the development hereby
approved
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of any new
operational development in order to ensure that a satisfactory means of
surface water drainage, to reduce the risk of flooding can be achieved
before development intensifies on site and to comply with the Policy 5.13
of the London Plan and Policies 115, 116 and 117 of the Bromley Local
Plan

4

No development shall commence on site (including demolition) until such
time as a Construction and Environmental Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. As a
minimum the plan shall cover:
(a) Dust mitigation and management measures.
(b) The location and operation of plant and wheel washing facilities
(c) Measure to reduce demolition and construction noise
(d) Details of construction traffic movements including cumulative impacts
which shall demonstrate the following:(i) Rationalise travel and traffic routes to and from the site as well as within
the site.
(ii) Provide full details of the number and time of construction vehicle trips
to the site with the intention and aim of reducing the impact of
construction related activity.
(iii) Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.
(iv) Full contact details of the site and project manager responsible for
day-to-day management of the works
(v) Parking for operatives during construction period

Page 69

(vi) A swept path drawings for any tight manoeuvres on vehicle routes to
and from the site including proposed access and egress arrangements at
the site boundary.
(e) Hours of operation
(f) Other site specific Highways and Environmental Protection issues as
requested on a case by case basis
(g) The development shall be undertaken in full accordance with the details
approved under Parts a-f
Reason: Required prior to commencement of development to ensure
sufficient measures can be secured throughout the whole build
programme in the interests of pedestrian and vehicular safety and the
amenities of the area. In order to comply with Policies 30, 31, 32 and 119 of
the Bromley Local Plan of the Unitary Development Plan and in the interest
of the amenities of the adjacent properties.
5

Prior to commencement of development (excluding demolition) details of
the proposed slab levels of the building(s) and the existing site levels shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority .
The development shall be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved levels.
Reason: Required prior to commencement in order to ensure that a
satisfactory form of development can be undertaken on the site in the
interest of visual amenity and to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley
Local Plan

6

The demolition of the existing building hereby permitted shall not be
undertaken before a contract for the carrying out of the works of
redevelopment of the site under the planning permission hereby granted,
has been made for the redevelopment for which the contract provides.
Reason: Required prior to commencement of development and in order to
comply with Policy 41 of the Bromley Local Plan and to prevent premature
demolition of the building which would be unacceptable.

7

No construction shall take place within 5m of the water main. Information
detailing how the developer intends to divert the asset / align the
development, so as to prevent the potential for damage to subsurface
potable water infrastructure, must be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any
construction must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the
approved information. Unrestricted access must be available at all times
for the maintenance and repair of the asset during and after the
construction works.
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground
strategic water main, utility infrastructure. The works has the potential to
impact on local underground water utility infrastructure and to comply with
Policies 5.14 and 5.15 of the London Plan.

Page 70

8

No piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the
depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which
such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and
minimise the potential for damage to subsurface water infrastructure, and
the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water.
Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the
approved piling method statement.
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground
water utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local
underground water utility infrastructure and to comply with Policies 5.14
and 5.15 of the London Plan.

9

i) Prior to commencement of above ground works details of treatment of all
parts on the site not covered by buildings shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be
landscaped strictly in accordance with the approved details in the first
planting season after completion or first occupation of the development,
whichever is the sooner. Details shall include:
1. A scaled plan showing all existing vegetation to be retained and trees
and plants to be planted which shall include use of a minimum of 30%
native plant species of home grown stock (where possible) and no
invasive species
2. Proposed hardstanding and boundary treatment
3. A schedule detailing sizes and numbers of all proposed trees/plants
4. Sufficient specification to endure successful establishment and survival
of new planting.
(ii) There shall be no excavation or raising or lowering of levels within the
prescribed root protection area of retained trees unless agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
(iii) Any new tree(s) that die(s), are/is removed or become(s) severely
damaged or diseased shall be replaced and any new planting (other than
trees) which dies, is removed, becomes severely damaged or diseased
within five years of planting shall be replaced. Unless further specific
permission has been given by the Local Planning Authority, replacement
planting shall be in accordance with the approved details
Reason: In order to comply with Policies 37, 73 and 74 of the Bromley
Local Plan to secure a visually satisfactory setting for the development
and to protect neighbouring amenity.

10

(a) Prior to commencement of above ground works, details (including
samples) of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the
building which shall include roof cladding, wall facing materials and
cladding, window glass, door and window frames, decorative features,
rainwater goods and paving where appropriate shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 71

(b) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of
the area
11

(i) The development hereby permitted shall incorporate measures to
minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific needs of the application
site and development. No above ground construction shall take place until
details of such measures have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
(ii) The approved measures shall be implemented before the development
is occupied and the security measures to be implemented in compliance
with this condition shall achieve the Secured by Design accreditation
awarded by the Metropolitan Police.
Reason: In the interest of security and crime prevention and to accord with
Policies 4 and 37 of the Bromley Local Plan

12

(i) The ceilings and walls between the and the upper floors of the premises
and the adjacent properties shall be so adapted as to achieve a reasonable
resistance to airborne sound and heat transference as far as is practical
having regard to existing construction in accordance with details to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior
to construction of above ground works.
(ii) The development shall be constructed in full accordance with details
approved under part (i) before the use hereby permitted commences and
shall be permanently retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to comply with Policies 37 and 119 of the Bromley Local
Plan and to ensure a satisfactory standard of amenity for adjacent
properties

13

Details of the means of privacy screening for all balconies and terrace
areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority before any above ground construction is commenced. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
prior to the balcony being brought into use and permanently retained as
such.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of
the area.

14

(a) Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, no above ground works
shall commence until detailed plans at a scale of 1:20 showing the
shopfront indicated on drawing 17796 PL108 has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
(b) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Page 72

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to
the detailed treatment of the proposal and to comply with Policy 37 and 41
of the Bromley Local Plan.
15

Before commencement of the use of the land or building hereby permitted
parking spaces and/or garages and turning space shall be completed in
accordance with the details as set out in this planning permission and
thereafter shall be kept available for such use and no permitted
development whether permitted by the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order (England) 2015 (or any Order
amending, revoking and re-enacting this Order) or not shall be carried out
on the land or garages indicated or in such a position as to preclude
vehicular access to the said land or garages.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 30 of the Bromley Local Plan and to
avoid development without adequate parking or garage provision, which is
likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and would be
detrimental to amenities and prejudicial to road safety.

16

The existing access shall be stopped up at the back edge of the highway
before any part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved enclosure shall be permanently
retained as such and the footway/verge reinstated as appropriate.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 34 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

17

Notwithstanding the information indicated on Drawing PL106, before the
development hereby permitted is first occupied electric car charging
point(s) shall be provided to a minimum of 20% of car parking spaces with
passive provision of electric charging capacity provided to an additional
20% of spaces.
Reasons: To minimise the effect of the development on local air quality
within an Air Quality Management Area and to comply with Policy 120 of
the Bromley Local Plan and Policies 6.13 and 7.14 of the London Plan.

18

The commercial unit shall not be used for A3 until either (a) a planning
application has been made and approved for a kitchen extract system and
works have been completed and approved in writing by the local planning
authority or (b) the local planning authority have been consulted and
confirmed in writing that no kitchen extract system is required.
Reason: Required prior to the use of the commercial unit as an A3 use in
order to ensure that satisfactory arrangements can be secured in the
interest of protecting residential amenity for adjacent properties and to
comply with Policy 119 of the Bromley Local Plan.

19

No plumbing, pipes or other services other than those shown on the
approved drawings shall be located on the exterior of the building(s)
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the architectural interest of the building.

Page 73

20

The arrangements for storage of refuse (which shall include provision for
the storage and collection of recyclable materials) and the means of
enclosure shown on the drawings hereby approved shall be completed
before any part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied, and
permanently retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
order to provide adequate refuse storage facilities in a location which is
acceptable in respect of residential and visual amenity impact.

21

The development hereby permitted shall be built in accordance with the
criteria set out in Building Regulations M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable
dwellings' and shall be permanently retained thereafter
Reason: To comply with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan 2015 and the
Mayors Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance 2016 and to ensure
that the development provides a high standard of accommodation in the
interests of the amenities of future occupants

22

No structure, plant, equipment or machinery shall be placed erected or
installed on or above the roof or on external walls without the prior
approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of
the area.

23

The flat roof areas of the building and flat roof indicated as 'no access' on
the proposed second floor shall not be used as a balcony or sitting out
area and there shall be no access to the roof area.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan and in
the interest of the amenities of the adjacent properties.

24

The application site is located within an Air Quality Management Area
declared for NOx: In order to minimise the impact of the development on
local air quality any gas boilers must meet a dry NOx emission rate of
<40mg/kWh
Reasons: To minimise the effect of the development on local air quality
within an Air Quality Management Area and to comply with Policy 120 of
the Bromley Local Plan and 7.14 of the London Plan.

25

Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying
that Order), the premises shall be used for A1, A2 or A3 use and for no
other purpose (including any other purpose in Use Class A of the Schedule
to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any
provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and
re-enacting that Order).
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjacent premises and maintain
retail character to comply with Policies 13, 15 and 37 of the Bromley Local
Plan.

Page 74

You are further informed that:
1

The applicant is advised that any works associated with the
implementation of this permission (including the demolition of any existing
buildings or structures) will constitute commencement of development.
Further, all pre commencement conditions attached to this permission
must be discharged, by way of a written approval in the form of an
application to the Planning Authority, before any such works of demolition
take place.

2

You should consult the Street Naming and Numbering Section at the Civic
Centre on 020 8313 4742 or e-mail: address.management@bromley.gov.uk
regarding Street Naming and Numbering. Fees and application forms are
available on the Council's website at www.bromley.gov.uk

3

You are advised that this application may be liable for the payment of the
Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy under the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010) and the Planning Act 2008. The
London Borough of Bromley is the Collecting Authority for the Mayor and
this Levy is payable on the commencement of development (defined in
Part 2, para 7 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010). It
is the responsibility of the owner and /or person(s) who have a material
interest in the relevant land to pay the Levy (defined under Part 2, para 4(2)
of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010). If you fail to
follow the payment procedure, the collecting authority may impose
surcharges on this liability, take enforcement action, serve a stop notice to
prohibit further development on the site and/or take action to recover the
debt. Further information about Community Infrastructure Levy can be
found on attached information note and the Bromley website
www.bromley.gov.uk/CIL

4

Conditions imposed on this planning permission require compliance with
Part M4 of the Building Regulations. The developer is required to notify
Building Control or their Approved Inspector of the requirements of these
conditions prior to the commencement of development.

5

If during the works on site any suspected contamination is encountered,
Environmental Health should be contacted immediately. The
contamination shall be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation
scheme submitted to the Local Authority for approval in writing.

6

With regard to the laying out of the crossover(s) and or reinstatement of
the existing crossover(s) a Vehicle Crossover Application will need to be
made to the Highway's Department. The application fee is a non-refundable
£100 pounds and the forms can be found through the webpage
https://www.bromley.gov.uk/info/200083/roads_highways_and_pavements/
279/access_to_your_drive_crossovers_dropped_kerbs/2

7

Any repositioning, alteration and/ or adjustment to street furniture or
Statutory Undertaker's apparatus, considered necessary and practical to
help with the modification of vehicular crossover hereby permitted, shall
be undertaken at the cost of the applicant.

Page 75

8

Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their
proposal, protection to the property by installing a positive pumped device
(or equivalent reflecting technological advances) to avoid the risk of
backflow at a later date, on the assumption that the sewerage network may
surcharge to ground level during storm conditions. Fitting only a nonreturn valve could result in flooding to the property should there be
prolonged surcharge in the public sewer. If as part of the basement
development there is a proposal to discharge ground water to the public
network, this would require a Groundwater Risk Management Permit from
Thames Water. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and
may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act
1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he
will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.
Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management
Team
by
telephoning
02035779483
or
by
emailing
wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be
completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality.

9

The proposed development is located within 15m of Thames Waters
underground assets, as such the development could cause the assets to
fail if appropriate measures are not taken. Please read our guide 'working
near our assets' to ensure your workings are in line with the necessary
processes you need to follow if you're considering working above or near
our
pipes
or
other
structures.https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-alargesite/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes.
Should you require further information please contact Thames Water.
Email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk Phone: 0800 009 3921
(Monday to Friday, 8am to 5pm) Write to: Thames Water Developer
Services, Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 8DB

10

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be
required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge
made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution
under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect the
developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise
groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be
directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by telephoning
02035779483 or by emailing wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk.
Application
forms
should
be
completed
on
line
via
www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality.

11

If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, it's
important you let Thames Water know before you start using it, to avoid
potential fines for improper usage. More information and how to apply can
be found online at thameswater.co.uk/buildingwater.

12

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of
10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point
where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account
of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.

Page 76

Application:19/00202/FULL1

Address: Century House 37 Church Road Anerley London SE19 2TE
Proposal: Demolition of existing A1 use ex car showroom, erection of 4
storey building with underground car parking for 9 cars to form 8no 2
bedroom flats and 1no 3 bedroom flat with amenity spaces and refuse and
cycle storage and new Commercial unit for A1, A2 or A3 use

Bk

ge
rid
2

e
(P C a
H ) mb

y
LB B d

n st &

The Palace
(PH)

3

70

Bk

Stratos Heights

66

64

62

60

58

54

56a

56

10

6

a

8

13

to

68

10

Bd

6

Co

ns

24

t&

LB

R OA
D

ly
As

2

ns

t,

ST A
U

GL

7

BYN
'S

25

36

Bo
ro

Co

8

OA
D

23

CLO
SE

22

2

M IL
EST
ON
ER

37

14

BR
UN
EL

19

y

14

17

1

C
Bo ro

WESTOW HILL

G
on st,

9 to 23

110.9m

CR
Co
L A sly

Th

LB

Shelter

78

57

86

55

53

51

49

88

49a

111.5m

73

71

69

67

2a

Bank

Shelter

TCB

3

9

1

CR

36

Club

27

111.6m

9

16

14

1

12a

AD

1t
24
12

to

PA
TT
ER
SO

28
40

o2
1t

Nightingale
Court

23

0

es
Da
vi

17

Co
u rt

51

53

Mo
llie

Cintra
Court

17
to
24

9
to
16

1
to

55

8

10

25
to
32

1

Un Uppe
it e d r N
Re orwo
for
me od
dC
hur
c

h

N

o1
1

B
TC

45

RO

48
32

CH
UR
CH
RO
AD

8

5

CLO
SE

1

TELFORD

to 4

10

37

16

8

25
42

52

6

4
STO

48

2

YL
NE

64

2

2

5t

o8

66
83

76

o1

69a

73

Patterson
Court

"This plan is provided to identify the location of thePage
site and
77
should not be used to identify the extent of the application site"
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

68

9t

62

o4

Patterson
Court

56

65
67

Pa
tt
Co erso
ur n
t

63

E
AN

111.8m

1t

1:1,170

This page is left intentionally blank

